
14 May 2018 Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

AGENDA 
Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 

Monday 14 May 2018, 6:00 p.m. 
R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 

134 Rose Avenue 
Henderson, North Carolina 

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor Eddie Ellington, Presiding 

Councilmember Marion B. Williams  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember William Burnette 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

Councilmember Melissa Elliott  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Fearldine A. Simmons 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

City Officials
Frank Frazier, City Manager 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

IV. OPENING REMARKS 

In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 

1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 

2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance 
and operations of the City. 



14 May 2018 Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a) 9 April 2018 Regular Meeting  [See Notebook Tab 1]

VII. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 

a) Retiree Wanda Ball 

VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 

a) Consideration of 1) Holding a Public Hearing on the Question of  Annexation for the 
Salvation Army, Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 160-A-31, and 2) 
Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 18-07, 1) Extending the Corporate Limits of 
the City of Henderson, North Carolina; 2) Assignment of Newly Annexed Areas 
Ward 2, and 3) Directing the City Attorney to Record Annexation with Vance County 
Board of Elections, Vance County Register of Deeds and the North Carolina 
Secretary of State. (CAF 18-13-C) [See Notebook Tab 2]

• Ordinance 18-07 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 

Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the 
meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, 
come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  
Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.3

X. OLD BUSINESS 

a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-05-A, Approving a Supplemental 
Agreement for Funding with the North Carolina Department of Transportation 
(NCDOT) for the Beckford Drive (SR 1165) Widening Project with High Impact 
Funds in the Amount of $400,000. (CAF 18-05-B)  [See Notebook Tab 3] 

• Resolution 18-05-A 

3 Citizen Comment Guidelines for Agenda Items
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern to 
them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three minutes 
should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public hearing 
comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, be 
scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be directed to 
the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public comment 
section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 



14 May 2018 Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-27, Reimbursement of Special Use 
Permit Fees for Greenhouse Structures.  (CAF 18-43) [See Notebook Tab 4]

• Resolution 18-27 

XI. NEW BUSINESS

a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-24, Awarding a Contract to North State 
Water and Sewer Inc. in the Amount of $159,300 for the ROBCO Manufacturing 
Water and Sewer Line Extension Project.  (CAF 18-40) [See Notebook Tab 5]

• Resolution 18-24 

b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 18-17, FY18 BA #18, Transferring Funds 
from General Fund Non-Departmental to Public Buildings and Grounds Budget for 
the Ash Tree Treatment Program.  (CAF 18-44)  [See Notebook Tab 6] 

• Ordinance 18-17 

c) Consideration of Approval of: 1) Resolution 18-28, Approving Execution of a 
Hydraulic Water Modeling Contract with Hazen and Sawyer in the Amount of 
$66,900; 2) Resolution 18-31, Approving a Contract with Stantec to Develop a 
Financial Planning and Member Rate Analysis; 3) Ordinance 18-18, FY18 BA #19,  
Transferring Funds From KLRW Reserves to Contracted Services and 4) Ordinance 
18-22, FY18, BA #22 for the Hazen & Sawyer Contract. (CAF 18-45) [See Notebook 
Tab 7]  

• Resolution 18-28 
• Resolution 18-31 
• Ordinance 18-18 
• Ordinance 18-22 

d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-26, Accepting a Grant/Loan from 
DWSRF for the Kerr Lake Regional Water System Plant Improvement Project in a 
Total Amount of $15,000,000. (CAF 18-42) [See Notebook Tab 8] 

• Resolution 18-26 

e) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 18-34, Awarding Change Order #1 for 
the Newton Dairy Road, Birch and Bobbitt Project; and 2) Approval of Budget 
Ordinance 18-20, FY18 BA #20, Amending the Budget for the CDBG Infrastructure 
Project #14-I-2658.  (CAF 18-48)  [See Notebook Tab 9] 

• Resolution 18-34 
• Ordinance 18-20 



14 May 2018 Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

f) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 18-33, Approve Change Order #2 to 
Replace Water Services to H G Reynolds for the Newton Dairy Road, Birch & 
Bobbitt Project; and 2) Ordinance 18-21, FY18 BA #21, Amending the Budget for 
the CDBG Infrastructure Project 14-I-2658 (Newton Dairy Road/Birch and Bobbitt 
Street Sewer Extension Project   (CAF 18-47) [See Notebook Tab 10] 

• Resolution 18-33 
• Ordinance 18-21 

g) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-32, Authorizing the Demolition of 314 
Hillside Alley.  (CAF 18-46)  [See Notebook Tab 11] 

• Resolution 18-32 

h) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-35, Authorizing the Application for a 
State Farm Community Grant by the Henderson Fire Department in the Amount of 
$25,000.  (CAF 18-49) [See Notebook Tab 12] 

• Resolution 18-35 

XII. CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda have either been previously discussed by 
City Council during a previous meeting and/or are considered in the ordinary course of 
business by the City Council and will be enacted-on by one motion and a roll call vote in 
the form listed.  If discussion is desired by either the Council or the Audience, the item in 
question will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately after the 
revised consent agenda has been approved. 

a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 18-16, Establishing a No Parking Zone on 
Zeb Robinson Road. (CAF 18-38)  [See Notebook Tab 13] 

• Ordinance 18-16 

b) Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month of March 2018.  (CAF 
18-39) [See Notebook Tab 14] 

XIII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address 
the Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of 
the meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, 
come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  
Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.4

4 Citizen Comment Guidelines for Non-Agenda Items
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern to 
them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 



14 May 2018 Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

XIV. REPORTS

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem (No Report) 
b) City Manager (No Report) 
c) City Attorney (No Report) 
d) City Clerk  

i. Meeting and Events Calendar [See Notebook Tab 15]
ii. E-911 Monthly Report 

iii. Fire Department Monthly Report   
iv. Public Works Monthly Report 
v. Recreation and Parks Monthly Report 

XV. CLOSED SESSION

a) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(3) regarding Attorney/Client Privilege

XVI. PROPOSED BUDGET PRESENTATION

XVII. ADJOURNMENT 

1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three minutes 
should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public hearing 
comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, be 
scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be directed to 
the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public comment 
section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 



Minute Book 44 
9 April 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes  

Page 1 of 10 

 City Council Minutes - DRAFT 
Regular Meeting 

April 9, 2018 

PRESENT 

Mayor Eddie Ellington, Presiding; and Council Members Marion B. Williams, William Burnette, 
D. Michael Rainey, Melissa Elliott and Garry D. Daeke

ABSENT 

Council Members Sara M. Coffey, Fearldine Simmons and George M. Daye 

STAFF PRESENT 

City Manager Frank Frazier, City Attorney D. Rix Edwards, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, 
Finance Director Joseph Fuqua, Police Chief Marcus Barrow, Assistant Police Chief Vance 
Johnson, Fire Chief Steve Cordell, Assistant Fire Chief Curtis Tyndall, Assistant to City 
Manager Paylor Spruill, Engineering Director Clark Thomas, Human Resources Director Elgin 
Lane, Development Services Director Corey Williams,  Henderson Water Reclamation Facility 
Director Lamont Allen, and Youth Services Program Coordinator, Shantel Hargrove. 

CALL TO ORDER    

The 9 April 2018 Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor 
Eddie Ellington at 6:04 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

ROLL CALL 

The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor Ellington a quorum was present.  The Clerk 
said both Council Members Coffey and Simmons are unable to attend this evening due to health 
issues and Council Member Elliott called earlier today to say she would need to leave the 
meeting early due to another commitment. 

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Member Elliott led those present in a prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance.   

OPENING COMMENTS 

Mayor Ellington said it good to see so many attendees at this meeting and thanked everyone for 
coming out this evening. 



Minute Book 44 
9 April 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes  

Page 2 of 10 

ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mayor Ellington asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda. Council Member Elliott 
moved to accept the Agenda as presented.  Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey, and 
unanimously approved. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mayor Ellington asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Daeke moved the approval of the 19 March 2018 Regular Meeting minutes as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Burnette, and unanimously approved. 

PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 

Mayor Ellington asked Henderson-Vance Chamber of Commerce Director John Barnes to 
introduce the 2018 Leadership Vance Class and welcomed them all to the meeting.  Mr. Barnes 
thanked Council for collaborating with the Chamber and for having the Class attend this evening 
as part of the Leadership Class curriculum. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Holding a Public Hearing on the Question of  Seven (7) Annexations, Pursuant to North 
Carolina General Statute 160-A-31, and 2) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 18-13, 
1) Extending the Corporate Limits of the City of Henderson, North Carolina; 2) 
Assignment of Newly Annexed Areas Wards 2 and 4, and 3) Directing the City Attorney to 
Record Annexation with Vance County Board of Elections, Vance County Register of 
Deeds and the North Carolina Secretary of State.  (Reference: CAF 18-13-B; Ordinance 18-
13) 

City Manager Frazier said seven petitions have been received for annexation.  The Salvation 
Army’s new building is mainly inside the city limits.  The State Employees Credit Union 
(SECU) has purchased land adjacent to their facility on Graham Avenue where they intend to 
install an ATM.  The parcels on Birch and David streets are within city boundaries and the two 
David Street parcels are owned by the City and are vacant lots.   The parcels on Birch Street are 
requesting annexation as their neighbors did through an annexation earlier this year. 

Mayor Ellington opened the Public Hearing by asking if anyone was present who wished to 
speak in favor of this amendment.   

Andrea Harris, 340 W. Rockspring Street.  Ms. Harris encouraged the City to share 
annexation information so residents would have a clear understanding of what areas are being 
annexed and felt a map should be published also.   



Minute Book 44 
9 April 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes  

Page 3 of 10 

No one else came forward so Mayor Ellington then asked if anyone was present who wished to 
speak in opposition to the amendment.  No one came forward.  Mayor Ellington then closed the 
Public Hearing and asked for Council’s pleasure. 

Mr. Frazier mentioned these annexations are at the request of the property owners.  In response 
to Ms. Harris’ request for maps, he said maps were printed in the paper when the City was taking 
over property; however, State Statute no longer allows municipalities to annex as it was once 
able to do.  He then emphasized these properties are all voluntary annexation petitions and when 
connecting to utilities are required to submit a petition if contiguous to the city limits. 

Several Council Members expressed concerns about the Salvation Army annexation.  Council 
felt with two middle schools soon to be vacated, one of those school buildings might serve the 
Salvation Army well since they have gyms, athletic fields and other facilities, and the buildings 
are centrally located.  Ultimately, Council felt the Salvation Army should be removed from this 
annexation approval to give the staff time to discuss this further with the Salvation Army 
officials to see if there is any interest in the existing buildings.  

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Ordinance 18-13, Holding a Public Hearing on 
the Question of  Six (6) Annexations, Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 160-A-31, and 
2) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 18-13, 1) Extending the Corporate Limits of the City 
of Henderson, North Carolina; 2) Assignment of Newly Annexed Areas Wards 2 and 4, and 3) 
Directing the City Attorney to Record Annexation with Vance County Board of Elections, Vance 
County Register of Deeds and the North Carolina Secretary of State. This motion excludes 
annexation of the Salvation Army location on Ross Mill Road until an unknown date in the 
future.  Motion seconded by Council Member Burnette, and APPROVED by the following vote:  
YES: Williams, Burnette, Rainey, Elliott and Daeke. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: 
Coffey, Simmons and Daye. (See Ordinance Book 9, p 519) 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 

City Clerk McCrackin advised no citizen wished to address Council.  

OLD BUSINESS 

Approving a Contract with Dewberry Engineering for Landscape Architectural Services in 
Support of the Pavilion (Special Use Permit #23840) and Transferring Funds from General 
Reserve to the Outdoor Pavilion CIP Budget in the Amount of $10,000. (Reference:  CAF 
18-35; Resolution 18-22, Ordinance 18-15, Budget Amendment #17)

City Manager Frazier gave some of the background for this project and said there is a private 
entity that is willing to build the pavilion.  However, it is believed that a landscape architect is 
needed to make sure this project is developed in the best way possible.  The need for outside 
expertise was discussed during the Public Works Committee meeting and it was the Committee’s 
recommendation to approve a task order with Dewberry Engineering to perform this work.  Mr. 
Frazier said the total fee has been reduced to $9,900 since the topographical map is being done 
by a surveyor through the Engineering Department. 



Minute Book 44 
9 April 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes  

Page 4 of 10 

Council Member Rainey wanted to know why a local firm is not being considered.  Mr. Frazier 
said he was unaware of local landscape architects nor anyone that would perform the work 
necessary for no cost.  Mr. Rainey noted that he did not say for free. 

Council Member Daeke, Chairperson of the Public Works Committee, mentioned the need for a 
site study to ensure the parking, grading of land, seating, etc. are all done properly.   

Engineering Director Clark Thomas added that it is important to have an architect’s input to 
make sure this project meets ADA requirements, that the space is properly terraced and even 
where the bathrooms should be located.  He said Killian, a local firm, does not have expertise in 
this area. Mr. Thomas noted that Council previously approved Dewberry Engineering as the on-
call engineering firm and Mr. Frazier added that the whole purpose of the on-call services was to 
obtain a consultant in a timely manner. 

Council Member Burnette asked if there is a timeframe for completing this project.  Manager 
Frazier said he hoped it would be completed before the end of summer and said the owner that 
agreed to build the pavilion was able to do it at this time and is ready to proceed. 

Council Member Williams mentioned that during the Public Works Committee meeting, she 
asked about the possibility of a water area such as a fountain and she would like that to be 
considered in the plans.   

With no further discussion, Mayor Ellington asked Council how it wished to proceed. 

Council Member Daeke moved the approval of Resolution 18-22, Approving a Contract with 
Dewberry Engineering for Landscape Architectural Services in Support of the Pavilion (Special 
Use Permit #23840)and Ordinance 18-15, FY18 BA #17, Transferring Funds from General 
Reserve to the Outdoor Pavilion CIP Budget in the Amount of $10,000. Motion seconded by 
Council Member Williams, and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Burnette, Elliott, 
Daeke and Williams. NO: Rainey. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Coffey, Simmons and Daye. 
(See Resolution Book 6, p 71; Ordinance Book 9, p 523) 

(Clerks Note:  Council Member Elliott left the meeting at 6:40 p.m.) 

Authorizing a Contract with Dewberry Engineers to Assist with Establishing a Stormwater 
Utility, Ordinance and Associated Rate Structure.  (Reference: CAF 18-37; Resolution 18-23) 

City Manager Frazier said this project has been discussed several times in the past and it was 
discussed during the Public Works meeting.  Staff feels professional input is needed to help 
develop a stormwater utility and to avoid pitfalls that other cities have experienced such as  
determining the appropriate rate structure and ordinance provisions.  He then asked Engineering 
Director Clark Thomas to introduce the Dewberry representative. 

Mr. Thomas said that several years ago Council approved Dewberry as the on-call engineering 
firm to assist with projects such as this. Mr. Thomas then introduced Mr. Larry Mitchell from 
Dewberry. Mr. Mitchell said Dewberry assisted Oxford in a similar stormwater utility project 
about eight years ago.  He felt Dewberry could help with stakeholder buy-in by both residents 



Minute Book 44 
9 April 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes  

Page 5 of 10 

and commercial/industrial developments.  They can also help with the environmental concerns 
that may be raised, as well as helping staff with stakeholder meetings.   

The stormwater utility fee would help pay for storm sewer pipe replacements that are identified 
as well as other stormwater improvements such as BMP’s that are greatly needed throughout the 
City. 

Council Member Daeke said this item was also discussed during the Public Works meeting and it 
was his understanding that there is a dire need for replacements.  The proposal, of $35,500 was 
also discussed in that meeting and each Council member received a copy of the proposal at the 
beginning of this meeting.   

With no further discussion, Mayor Ellington asked Council how it wished to proceed. 

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 18-18, Authorizing a Contract with 
Dewberry Engineers to Assist with Establishing a Stormwater Utility, Ordinance and Associated 
Rate Structure Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke, and APPROVED by the following 
vote:  YES: Burnette, Rainey, Daeke and Williams. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: 
Coffey, Elliott, Simmons and Daye. (See Resolution Book 6, p 73) 

NEW BUSINESS 

Establishing a Written Policy for Pre-Audit and Electronic Disbursement of Funds.
(Reference: CAF 18-30; Resolution 18-18) 

City Manager Frazier said this is a housekeeping matter and asked Finance Director Joey Fuqua 
to explain this resolution.  Mr. Fuqua said that new State policies were put in place in November 
2017 that require internal controls to ensure funds are available prior to making payments.  The 
city was already meeting these requirements with the institution of the PCard system in June 
2017.  However, the new guidelines require a resolution be passed by Council.   

There was no discussion and Mayor Ellington asked Council how it wished to proceed. 

Council Member Burnette moved the approval of Resolution 18-18, Establishing a Written 
Policy for Pre-Audit and Electronic Disbursement of Funds.  Motion seconded by Council 
Member Daeke, and APPROVED by the following vote: YES: Rainey, Daeke, Williams and 
Burnette.  NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Coffey, Elliott, Simmons and Daye. (See 
Resolution Book 6, p 63) 

Approving a Contract Between the City of Henderson and Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams 
& Co., P.A. to Conduct the Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2017-2018.  (Reference:  CAF 18-
32; Resolution 18-20) 

City Manager Frazier explained William L. Stark and Co. who has done the audit for the last 
three years elected not to submit a proposal for this year.  He said no local firms submitted 
proposals but a proposal was received from Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams and Co., PA.  This 
firm performed an audit for the City in 2007.  Mr. Frazier said they audited the County in FY 16-
17 and both the County Manager and the Finance Director were pleased with their work. The 



Minute Book 44 
9 April 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes  

Page 6 of 10 

Manager added that Council is approving this firm for one year but the firm was willing to 
commit to three years at the same cost of $50,250.  

Mayor Ellington asked if they would perform the same work as William L. Stark and the 
Manager replied yes. 

Council Member Rainey asked where the firm is located.  Mr. Frazier said their main office is in 
Whiteville, NC.  Mr. Rainey also asked why the current auditors did not submit a bid.  Mr. 
Frazier said he spoke to the principals and right now, they felt the manpower needed to do a 
municipal audit was more than they wanted to take on for another year.  Mr. Frazier added he 
was told the City was a good customer and the firm may be open to submitting a proposal in 
coming years. 

Council Member Daeke said he had heard smaller firms are no longer doing audits such as what 
the city needs and since these audits all come at the same time, he could understand the 
reasoning. 

With no further discussion, Mayor Ellington asked Council how it wished to proceed. 

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 18-20, Approving a Contract 
Between the City of Henderson and Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. to Conduct the 
Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2017-2018.  Motion seconded by Council Member Burnette, and 
APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Daeke, Williams, Burnette and Rainey.  NO: None. 
ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Coffey, Elliott, Simmons and Daye. (See Resolution Book 6, p 67) 

Amending the Agreement with T-Mobile for an Additional Ten (10) Year Lease. 
(Reference:  CAF 18-21, Resolution 18-21)   

City Manager Frazier said T-Mobile has used the water tower on Chavasse Street for many years 
and that the current agreement expires December 7, 2018.  He said T-Mobile has met with the 
City staff and the amended agreement is for ten years and will provide $3,500 monthly income 
with a 2% escalation clause every year. 

Council Member Daeke asked if the existing lease had an escalation clause and Mr. Frazier 
referred this question to Assistant to the City Manager Mr. Spruill who responded yes.   

Mr. Spruill said the agreement currently provides for $2,600 monthly. 

With no further discussion, Mayor Ellington asked Council how it wished to proceed. 

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 18-21, Amending the Agreement with 
T-Mobile for an Additional Ten (10) Year Lease. Motion seconded by Council Member Burnette, 
and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Daeke, Williams, Burnette and Rainey.  NO: 
None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Coffey, Elliott, Simmons and Daye. (See Resolution Book 6, 
p 69) 



Minute Book 44 
9 April 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes  

Page 7 of 10 

Amending Article IV, Section 16-61 Sidewalks of the City Code and Adding Section 16-69 
to Include Downtown Sidewalk Café Regulations. (Reference: CAF 18-36; Ordinance 18-14) 

City Manager Frazier said the DDC has requested outdoor seating be allowed for downtown 
restaurants.  After meeting with staff an amendment to the city code has been drafted and 
presented to the Public Works Committee.  The Committee suggested safety issues, possible 
liability issues, furniture standards and questioned whether furniture should remain outside 
overnight, along with how the trash should be disposed of from outside tables.   

Council Member Rainey asked if this amendment is restaurant specific.  Mr. Frazier said yes and 
City Attorney Edwards referenced the definition section of the amendment.   

Mr. Frazier said if this amendment is approved and problems occur, further changes could be 
recommended to the ordinance if there are further adjustments needed. It was also stated that the 
staff would provide a standard guide for this similar to the one provided by the City Attorney 
from the city of Richmond, VA. 

With no further discussion, Mayor Ellington asked Council how it wished to proceed. 

Council Member Burnette moved the approval of Resolution 18-21, Amending Article IV, 
Section 16-61 Sidewalks of the City Code and Adding Section 16-69 to Include Downtown 
Sidewalk Café Regulations. Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey, and APPROVED by 
the following vote:  YES: Williams, Burnette, Rainey and Daeke. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. 
ABSENT: Coffey, Elliott, Simmons and Daye. (See Ordinance Book 9, p 521) 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The City Clerk read the Consent Agenda, summarized as follows: 

Approving FY 18-19 Budget Review Calendar and Schedule of Special Council Budget 
Work Sessions.  (Reference: CAF 18-29; Resolution 18-17)  This is a routine matter to allow 
time for Council to discuss/review the budget prior to approving in June to meet State guidelines. 
(See Resolution Book 6, p 61)

Declaring the Opioid Crisis a Public Nuisance. (Reference: CAF 18-33; Resolution 18-16)  
Opioids have become a nationwide epidemic and the consensus of Council was to join with other 
municipalities to hold the pharmaceutical industry accountable for the influx of these drugs.
(See Resolution Book 6, p 59) 

Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month of February 2018. The 
Finance Director has reviewed the following releases/refunds and found them to be in order.  
This action approves the tax releases and refunds for February 2018.  



Minute Book 44 
9 April 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes  

Page 8 of 10 

February 2018 Tax Releases & Refunds

Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property Releases

Personal Property (Various) Personal Property Billed In Error 2017 7,349.53$                 

Brame, Beatrice Real Property Billed In Error 2017 3,972.10$                 

Anoviv Realty of NC Real Property Billed In Error 2017 134.30$                    

Williams, Bobby Real Property Billed In Error 2017 306.62$                    

-$                         

Real & Personal Property Releases - Total 11,762.55$               

Real & Personal Property Refunds

-$                         

Real & Personal Property Refunds - Total -$                          

Audit Discoveries

-$                         

Audit Discoveries - Total -$                          

Total Refunds & Releases 11,762.55$               

Mayor Ellington asked if anyone wished to remove an item from the Consent Agenda. There 
were no requests.  Mayor Ellington asked for a motion to approve the consent Agenda  

Council Member Rainey moved the approval of the Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Williams, and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: 
Williams, Burnette, Rainey and Daeke.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Coffey, 
Elliott, Simmons and Daye. 

Council Member Daeke asked the Finance Director for an explanation of “Personal Property – 
Various” as listed on the Tax Releases above.  Mr. Fuqua said they were many very small 
amounts that were combined.  Mr. Daeke was satisfied knowing the Finance Department had 
reviewed this amount. 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

City Clerk McCrackin advised four citizens wished to address Council.  

Susie Geronimo Ms. Geronimo would like to work with the City in finding ways to 
renovate properties so they can be purchased and bring in revenue.   

Mayor Ellington thanked Ms. Geronimo for her concern. 

Charles Powell, P.O. Box 74, Henderson Mr. Powell came before Council to ask for a 
waiver of the Special Use Permit for the community gardens.  He felt the $450 special use permit 
could smash dreams and prevent individuals from making a living and realizing their dream. 

Ardis Crews, 424 Hamilton Street  As spokesperson for Green Rural Redevelopment, 
Inc., Ms. Crews asked that the Special Use Petition required for using 725 Roberson St. as a 
GAP Farm be waived.   



Minute Book 44 
9 April 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes  

Page 9 of 10 

Andrea Harris, 340 W. Rockspring Street Ms. Harris also asked that the Special Use 
Permit be waived for Roberson Street.  She stated use of the property for farming would be seen 
positively by the community. 

There was discussion by Council whether a waiver would set a precedent, if a lease could be 
utilized, and whether the property could be granted with certain restrictions.  No conclusions 
were determined; however, the City Manager, City Attorney and Development Services 
department will continue to look into this matter and bring back a recommendation to Council.  

REPORTS 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem  - Mayor Ellington reported that a thank you note was received 
from Council Member Williams for the kind words, prayers and plant she received with 
the passing of her sister. 

b) City Manager - Mr. Frazier reported on the following: 
i. The DDC has asked the City to assist with renovations to the Orange Street 

parking lot.  The DDC would like to install new light posts, benches and a 
sculpture at no cost to the City.  However, the City may need to put down a seal 
coat and new bumper stops.  In addition, the DDC would like the City’s assistance 
in cutting down the overgrown trees. 

ii. The Manager is still working to gather information regarding the minimum charge 
for any habitable structure or commercial business for failure to connect to 
available water and sewer 

c) Staff Report 
i. Youth Services Program Coordinator Shantel Hargrove and Police Chief Marcus 

Barrow reported on the ShopTalk meetings that began last week. Ms. Hargrove 
said four meetings have been held and more are scheduled.  The purpose is to 
gather information from teens and young adults about what programs they would 
like to see the City/County offer.  Overall, they would like to see a teen center 
downtown so they would have a safe place to gather.  They would like the 
Aycock Recreation Center open longer on Saturday and Sunday afternoons. A 
shadowing program was mentioned and some commented that more resource/job 
readiness programs would be helpful. In addition, a parenting class for parents 
was mentioned.  Chief Barrow said overwhelmingly there was mention of more 
centrally located services.  Many of the youth come downtown because they feel 
safe and, they can find free wi-fi hot spots.  The Chief said there has been very 
little talk about law enforcement.  Ms. Hargrove said a meeting is scheduled for 
April 16 at the Perry Memorial Library for the teen council to review these ideas 
and to begin an implementation process. 

d) City Attorney - (No Report) 
e) City Clerk – (No Report)

At this time, Mayor Ellington asked if Council was prepared to go into Closed Session and stated 
there would be no report following the session. 



Minute Book 44 
9 April 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes  

Page 10 of 10 

(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Simmons arrived at 7:35 p.m.) 

CLOSED SESSION 

Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(3) for a Client-Attorney Matter.  Motion seconded by Council Member Williams, and 
unanimously approved.  

Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Burnette, and unanimously approved.  

WORK SESSION 

Establishing a No Parking Zone on Zeb Robinson Road. (Reference: CAF 18-38; Ordinance 18-
16) 

City Manager Frazier asked Police Chief Barrow to explain this request.  Chief Barrow said he 
has requested no parking signs for a portion of Zeb Robinson Road due to the trash, bottles, etc. 
that have accumulated along the road.  This debris can be seen from I-85 and is an eyesore for 
those traveling on Zeb Robinson Road.  The majority of this trash comes from a bar and lounge 
on the road. There is also a sweepstakes business that shares the same parking lot and when the 
lot is full, the overflow parks along both sides of the street.  The Chief has spoken to White’s 
Funeral Home to assure them that the no parking will begin far enough down the road so that 
vehicles can park along the road for a large funeral.  He has also talked with The Peanut Roaster.  
Both businesses are pleased to know action is being considered.  There is also a hotel on this 
road.  Overall, the Chief feels restricting parking in the specified area will greatly reduce the 
trash accumulation in the area as well as other safety concerns for the traveling public.    

ADJOURNMENT 

Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Burnette, and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 

____________________________ 
Eddie Ellington 
Mayor ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



CAF 18-13-C: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 8 

________________________________________ 
20 April 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council 

FR: Frank Frazier, City Manager  

RE: CAF:  18-13-C 
Consideration of 1) Holding a Public Hearing on the Question of Annexation for the 
Salvation Army, Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 160-A-31, and 2) 
Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 18-07, 1) Extending the Corporate Limits 
of the City of Henderson, North Carolina; 2) Assignment of Newly Annexed Areas 
Wards 2, and 3) Directing the City Attorney to Record Annexation with Vance 
County Board of Elections, Vance County Register of Deeds and the North 
Carolina Secretary of State. 

Executive Summary 

The City Council approved Resolution 18-13-A, fixing a date for a Public Hearing to be held at 
the April 9, 2018, Council Meeting for the purpose of receiving public input regarding seven 
annexations. 

During the April 9th meeting, several Council Members expressed concerns about the Salvation 
Army annexation.  Council felt one of the middle school buildings that will be vacated 
beginning with the 2018 school year might better serve the Salvation Army as the schools are 
more centrally located with the City.  The City Manager and Mayor met with the Salvation 
Army representative and were told that their organization is too far along with their plans by 
purchasing the property and having spent a significant amount of money on design and 
permitting of the site.  It is noted that the majority of the proposed building site is already within 
the existing city limits and the portion that the city received the voluntary petition for would be 
for athletic fields and other outdoor activities. 

Upon approval by Council, this annexation will become effective on June 1, 2018.  

Attachments: 
1. Ordinance 18-07 
2. Annexation Report 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 Council Meeting:  14 May 18 Reg. Meeting



CAF 18-13-C: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 8 

ORDINANCE 18-07 

EXTENDING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE  
CITY OF HENDERSON NORTH CAROLINA (CITY) 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) has been petitioned under North Carolina 
General Statute (G.S.) §160A-31 to annex the area described below: and 

WHEREAS, the Council by resolution directed the City Clerk to investigate the sufficiency of 
the petition: and 

WHEREAS, the Clerk certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public hearing on the  
question of annexation was held in Council Chambers, City Hall, 134 Rose Avenue, 
Henderson, North Carolina on April 9, 2018, after due notice by publication on March 
28, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of G. S. §160A-31. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council that: 

Section 1:  By virtue of the authority granted by G. S. §160A-31, the following described 
territories, as currently recorded in the Vance County Registry of Deeds office, are 
hereby annexed and made part of the City as of April 9, 2016:  

Salvation Army (Ross Mill Road) Ward 2 

CAF 18-13-C 
Attachment #1 



CAF 18-13-C: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 8 

Section 2:  Upon and after May 14, 2018, the above described territory and its citizens 
and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and regulations in force in the 
City of Henderson and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts 
of the City of Henderson. Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to 
G.S. §160A-58.10. 

Section 3: The Mayor of the City shall cause to be recorded in the office of the Vance 
County Register of Deeds, and in the office of the North Carolina Secretary of State in 
Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 
above, together with a duly certified copy of this ordinance. Such a map shall be 
delivered to the Vance County Board of Elections as is required by G.S. §163-288.1. 
Adopted this 1st day of June 2018. 

The foregoing Ordinance 18-**, upon motion of Council Member ________________ 
and seconded by Council Member _______________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the 9th

day of April 2018:  YES:  . NO:     ABSTAIN:    .  ABSENT:   . 

______________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 

_______________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference:  Minute Book 44, p ***; CAF 18-13-C 



CAF 18-13-C: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 8 



CAF 18-13-C: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 8 



CAF 18-13-C: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 8 



CAF 18-13-C: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 8 



CAF 18-13-C: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 8 



CAF 18-05-B: Council Meeting: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 5 

________________________________________ 
12 April 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council 
FR: Frank Frazier, City Manager 
RE: CAF: 18-05-B

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-05-A, Approving a Supplemental Agreement 
for Funding with the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) for the 
Beckford Drive (SR 1165) Widening Project with High Impact Funds in the Amount of 
$400,000

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 

• KSO 5: Provide reliable, dependable and environmentally compliant infrastructure systems.
• KSO 8:  Provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay necessary to meet the 

needs of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory authorities.

Executive Summary:  

Federal funding of $825,000 was received for this project through a U.S. Congress Transportation 
Reauthorization bill and engineering was approved in 2009 to begin the design. All Easements and Right 
of Ways have now been obtained and the City is anticipating approval from NCDOT to bid the project. 

The estimated construction cost for the project is $1,339,676.  NCDOT has agreed to additional funding 
in the amount of $400,000 utilizing High Impact funds and possibly other sources and the City Council 
reached a general consensus in a prior meeting to utilize additional City funds for the project with the 
final amount needed to be determined after bids have been received. The supplemental agreement, if 
approved, outlines increased funding and completion dates for the Beckford Drive Widening project. 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution 18-05-A  
2. Supplemental Agreement 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 
Council Meeting: 14 May 18 Regular Meeting 



CAF 18-05-B: Council Meeting: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 

3.

R E S O L U T I O N   18-05-A 
APPROVING SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR FUNDING 
WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT (NCDOT) OF 
TRANSPORTATION FOR THE BECKFORD DRIVE (SR 1165) 
WIDENING PROJECT WITH HIGH IMPACT FUNDS IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $400,000

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 2018 and 
during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and

: 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses: 

KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure and 
KSO 8: To Provide Financial Resourcing; and 

WHEREAS, Federal funding of $825,000 was received for the Beckford Drive Widening Project 
through a U.S. Congress Transportation Reauthorization bill and engineering was 
approved in 2009 to begin the design; and  

WHEREAS, the NCDOT has offered funding of $400,000 toward the construction of this project 
utilizing High Impact Funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES
HEREBY approve the execution of the Supplemental Agreement with the NCDOT for the use of 
$400,000 in High Impact Funds to help construct the Beckford Drive Widening Project (U-4916). 

The foregoing Resolution 18- upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member **, 
and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the *** 
day of **** 2018:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

____________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 

________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference:  Minute Book 44, p **, CAF 18- 

CAF 18-05-B 
Attachment #1 



CAF 18-05-B: Council Meeting: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 

NORTH CAROLINA SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT

VANCE COUNTY

DATE: 3/20/2018 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF  

TRANSPORTATION 

TIP #: U-4916 

AND WBS ELEMENTS: PE 41065.1.1 

ROW 41065.2.1 

CITY OF HENDERSON CON 41065.3.1 

OTHER FUNDING: WBS 47889 

CFDA #: 20.205 

TOTAL SUPPLEMENTAL FUNDS [NCDOT PARTICIPATION] $400,000 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on the last date executed below, by and between the 

North Carolina Department of Transportation, an agency of the State of North Carolina, hereinafter 

referred to as the “Department”, and the City of Henderson, hereinafter referred to as the 

“Municipality.”

W I T N E S S E T H:  

WHEREAS, the Department and the Municipality on 3/18/2009, entered into a certain Project 

Agreement for the original scope: the widening of Beckford Drive (SR 1165) to a three lane facility 

(center turn lane) with curb and gutter, storm drainage and sidewalks starting at Harrison Street 

(formerly SR 1284) to North Park Drive in Henderson; programmed under Project U-4916; and, 

WHEREAS, the completion date of the Project was extended on 1/12/2012 and 5/4/2015; and, 

WHEREAS, High Impact/Low Cost state funds have been approved for this Project under WBS 

47889; and, 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to increase the funding and extend the completion date for the Project;

NOW THEREFORE, the parties wish to supplement the aforementioned Agreement whereby the 

following provisions are amended: 

Agreement ID # 7830 1 

CAF 18-05-B 
Attachment #2 



CAF 18-05-B: Council Meeting: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 

FUNDING 

Subject to compliance by the Municipality with the provisions set forth in this Agreement and the 

availability of funds, the Department will participate in the original SAFETEA-LU High Priority funds up 

to Eight Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($825,000) and the Municipality will provide a 20% 

($206,250) local match as shown in the FUNDING TABLE below. The Department will provide an 

additional amount of High Impact/Low Cost funds up to Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($400,000) 

which will be available to be reimbursed at a rate of 100% for eligible project costs. Any costs that 

exceed the total available funding of $1,431,250 will be the responsibility of the Municipality. 

FUNDING TABLE 

Fund Source Federal Funds 
Amount 

Reimbursement 
Rate 

Local Funds  
Amount 

Reimbursement 
Rate 

SAFETEA-LU 
High Priority 

$825,000 80% $206,250 20% 

State Funds  
Amount 

High Impact/Low 
Cost 

$400,000 100% 

Total Available Funding $1,431,250 

TIME FRAME 

The Municipality shall complete all work outlined in the Agreement by 12/31/2020, defined as 

completion of all construction activities or implementation activities, acceptance of the project, 

and submission of a final reimbursement package to the Department. If additional time is needed 

to complete the Project, then a supplemental agreement must be executed. The Department 

and/or FHWA reserves the right to revoke the funds awarded if the Municipality is unable to meet 

this completion date. 

Except as hereinabove provided, the Agreement heretofore executed by the Department and the 

Municipality on 7/30/2014, 1/12/2012, and 5/4/2015 is ratified and affirmed as therein provided. 

Agreement ID # 7830 2 



CAF 18-05-B: Council Meeting: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed, in duplicate, the day and year 

heretofore set out, on the part of the Department and the Municipality by authority duly given. 

L.S. ATTEST: CITY OF HENDERSON 

BY:   ___________________________________ BY: _______________   

TITLE:  _________________________________ TITLE: _____________   

DATE: DATE: 

NCGS 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of any 
gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the State. 
By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire organization and its 
employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or promised 
by any employees of your organization. 

Approved by the City of Henderson as attested to by the signature of 

, Clerk of the 

(Governing Board) on 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner 
required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

(SEAL) 

(FINANCE OFFICER) 

Federal Tax Identification Number 

Remittance Address:  
City of Henderson 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

BY:  

(CHIEF ENGINEER)

DATE: 

APPROVED BY BOARD OF TRANSPORTATION ITEM O: ___________________________ (Date) 

Agreement ID # 7830 3 



CAF 18-43: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 2 

________________________________________ 
2 May 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council 

FR: Frank Frazier, City Manager 

RE: CAF: 18-43
Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-27, Reimbursement of Special Use 
Permit fees for Greenhouse Structures

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Executive Summary:  

The City has been asked to consider support of non-profit efforts to develop greenhouse uses on 
vacant public property, where appropriate.  The majority of vacant public property for this use is 
zoned residential and found in existing residential neighborhoods.  Generally greenhouse 
structures require a special use permit if they are to be placed on residentially zoned property. 
The permit application fee is $450.00.  It has been suggested a refund of this fee would assist 
non-profits in furthering locally grown produce. 

Green Rural Redevelopment, Inc. was recently granted a special use permit to place a 
greenhouse on City owned property at Roberson Street (PIN # 0068 01014).  Its lease with the 
City extends through August 31, 2020. 

The attached resolution is designed to allow non-profit corporations erecting greenhouses on 
City owned property to be reimbursed the cost of any required and approved special use 
application fee after the greenhouse has been installed in accordance with the special use permit. 

Attachment: 

1. Resolution 18-27 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 
Council Meeting: 14 May 18 Reg. Meeting 



CAF 18-43: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 

R E S O L U T I O N   18-27 

REIMBURSEMENT OF SPECIAL USE PERMIT FEES 
FOR GREENHOUSES 

WHEREAS, the City deems it desirable to support non-profit entities in their effort to promote 
greenhouse uses on appropriate public property; and

WHEREAS, this effort can result in furthering locally grown produce and thereby develop self-
employment and self-support options; and 

WHEREAS, the City special use permit application fee for this use is a significant incidental cost for 
non-profit entities engaged in this effort.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES
HEREBY agree to refund to the applicant the special use permit application fee.  Such refund to 
occur under the following conditions: 

Section 1. The applicant must be a non-profit organization recognized by the United States 
Internal Revenue Service under 26 US Code §501(c)(3), (c)(4) or (c)(5); and must provide a copy 
of their IRS tax-exempt recognition letter; and the most recently filed IRS Form 990 (or its 
variants) and schedules. 

Section 2.  The application must be for a greenhouse structure to be erected on public property. 

Section 3. The special use permit must be approved and the greenhouse constructed, in 
compliance with all applicable rules and regulations. 

The foregoing Resolution 18-27, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member **, 
and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the *** 
day of **** 2018:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

____________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved as to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference:  Minute Book 44, p **, CAF 18-43

CAF 18-43 
Attachment #1



CAF 18-40: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 8 

________________________________________ 
28 March 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council 

FR: Frank Frazier, City Manager 

RE: CAF: 18-40 
Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-24, Awarding a Contract to North State 
Water and Sewer Inc. in the Amount of $159,300 for the ROBCO Manufacturing 
Water and Sewer Line Extension Project 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 

• KSO 5 – Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems. 

• KSO 8   –   Provide Sufficient Funding for Municipal Services. 

Executive Summary 

The City of Henderson received notification that a NCDEQ Economic Development grant was 
approved for the ROBCO Manufacturing water and sewer main extension project in the amount 
of $217,272 and on September 25, 2017, via Resolution 17-73, Council approved an Engineering 
contract in the amount of $34,800 to AECOM for the design and construction administration of 
said project. The City will provide periodic inspection of the project and the Kerr Tar Council of 
Governments (COG) will continue to assist with the grant administration of this project. 

The Project had a Bid Opening on April 5, 2017, and only one bid was received (from HG 
Reynolds), therefore, the bids were not opened and the project was re-advertised for April 19, 
2018.  The bid was opened on April 19, 2018, and the apparent low responsive bidder was North 
State Water and Sewer Inc. with a price of $159,300.  The other bids received were:   

• HG Reynolds $333,715; and
• Hollins Construction Services Inc. $372,900.    

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 Council Meeting: 14 May 2018 Reg. Meeting



CAF 18-40: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 8 

Based on the attached Certified Bid Tab and the engineers recommendation, staff recommends 
that the construction contract for this project be awarded to North State Water and Sewer Inc. in 
the amount of $159,300, contingent upon the funding agency’s approval. The engineers 
construction estimate was $164,600. 

Attachments 

1. Resolution 18-24 
2. Resolution 17-73 
3. Certified Bid Tabulation 
4. Engineer’s Recommendation 



CAF 18-40: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 8 

RESOLUTION 18-24   

APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH NORTH STATE WATER AND 
SEWER INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $ 159,300 FOR THE WATER AND 

SEWER LINE EXTENSION FOR ROBCO MANUFACTURING’S PLANT 
EXPANSION 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2018 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

WHEREAS,   two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: 
KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and
KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 
Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council received bids after re-advertising on April 19, 2018, for a Water 
and Sewer Main Extension for Robco Manufacturing; and 

WHEREAS, the City deems it in the best interest to award this contract to North State Water and 
Sewer Inc. in the amount of $159,300.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT 
IT HEREBY APPROVES awarding the contract to North State Water and Sewer 
Inc., contingent upon the funding agency’s approval in the amount of $ 159,300. 

The foregoing Resolution 18-24 introduced by Council Member ** and seconded by Council 
Member ** on this the ___day of 2018, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was *** by 
the following votes: YES:  .  NO:  .  ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:  . 

__________________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 

____________________________________   
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
(Reference:  Minute Book 44, p **.) 

CAF 18-40 
Attachment #1



CAF 18-40: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 8 

RESOLUTION 17-73 

AWARD OF AN ENGINEERING CONTRACT WITH AECOM 
 IN THE AMOUNT OF $34,800 FOR THE  

ROBCO MANUFACTURING WATER AND SANITARY SEWER LINE 
EXTENSION PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2017 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

WHEREAS,   two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: 
KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and 
KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 
Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and 

WHEREAS, the City applied for and has been awarded a grant in the amount of $ 217,272 for a 
water and sewer line extension project, subject to a preliminary engineering report and 
full application; and

WHEREAS, the Engineering Contract shall amount to $34,800 of the overall project budget; 
and; 

WHEREAS, this grant will assist in the construction of approximately 1,200 linear feet of 8-inch 
gravity sewer, water tap and fire connection and appurtenances to the existing water 
distribution system serving the Bear Pond Road area.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL: 

1. That the City of Henderson awards an Engineering contract in the amount of $34,800 
to AECOM for the design and construction administration of this Project.  

2. That the City of Henderson will adopt and place into effect on or before completion 
of the project a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will 
provide adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the 
system and the repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 

3. That the City of Henderson will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of 
the project on completion of construction thereof. 

4. That Mayor Eddie Ellington, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 
directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in 
connection with such application or the project:  to make the assurances as contained 
above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in connection with 
the application. 

CAF 18-40 
Attachment #2 



CAF 18-40: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 8 

5. That the City of Henderson has substantially complied or will substantially comply 
with all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to 
the project and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

The foregoing Resolution 17-73 introduced by Council Member ** and seconded by Council 
Member ** on this _______ day of 2017, and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was *** 
by the following votes: YES:  .  NO:  .  ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:  . 

__________________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 

____________________________________   
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference:  Minute Book 44, p. **; CAF 17-92 



CAF 18-40: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 8 

CAF 18-40 
Attachment #3 



CAF 18-40: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 8 



CAF 18-40: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 8 

CAF 18-40 
Attachment #4 



CAF 18-44:  14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

________________________________________ 
3 May 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council 
FR: Frank Frazier, City Manager 
RE: CAF: 18-44

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance, 18-17, FY 18 BA #18 Transferring Funds 
from General Fund Non-Departmental to Public Buildings and Grounds Budget for 
the Ash Tree Treatment Program

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Executive Summary:  

On March 19, 2018 Council approved Resolution 18-15 accepting a grant from the North 
Carolina Department of Agriculture and Consumer Affairs for the treatment of the Ash trees in 
the downtown area in the amount of $5,000.   

The grant requires the city to pay for the labor to apply the treatment.  Lineberger’s Tree Service 
has submitted an estimate of $2,700 for this service. This budget ordinance transfers funds from 
the General Fund Non-Department Reserve account to Public Buildings & Grounds Contracted 
Services line item to cover this expense. 

Attachments: 

1. Ordinance 18-17 
2. Lineberger’s Tree Service Estimate 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 
Council Meeting: 14 May 18 Regular Meeting 



CAF 18-44:  14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

O R D I N A N C E   18-17 
FY 2017—2018 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 18 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE GENERAL FUND 
NON-DEPARTMENTAL RESERVE TO  PUBLIC BLDGS. & GROUNDS 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 12 June 2017 adopted the FY 17-18 
Annual Operating Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has created and uses a General Fund for forecasted expenses; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual  
Operating and General Fund budgets from time-to-time, said amendment being 
incorporated into this ordinance. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 
The following Ordinance be approved and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately  
upon approval of the City Council: 

Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 12-Jun-17 Budget Amendment Revised

-$             -$               -$             -$             

Total -$             -$               -$             -$             

-$             

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 12-Jun-17 Budget Amendment Revised

Reserve Non-Departmental 10-660-900999 218,475.00$  218,475.00$   (2,700.00)$    215,775.00$  

Public Bldgs & Grounds Contr Serv: Routine 10-500-504500 31,720.00$    31,720.00$     2,700.00$     34,420.00$    

-$             -$               -$             -$             

Total 250,195.00$  250,195.00$   -$             250,195.00$  

250,195.00$  

variance -$             

Amendment to transfer funds from non-departmental reserve to contracted services

to treat Ash trees in the downtown area.

EXPENDITURES

14 May 2018 COUNCIL MEETING

Ordinance 18-17
FY 17-18 Budget Amendment #18Fund:  10:  GENERAL

Reference:

CAF #18-44 ; Ordinance #18-17 ; BA #18

Notes:

REVENUES

The foregoing Ordinance 18-17 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member **, 
and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the *** 

day of **** 2018:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 
__________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference:  Minute Book 4*, pp. **, CAF 18-44

CAF 18-44 
Attachment #1 



CAF 18-44:  14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

CAF 18-44 
Attachment #2 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 1 of 21 

________________________________________ 
2 May 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council 
FR: Frank Frazier, City Manager 
RE: CAF:  18-45   

Consideration of Approval of: 1) Resolution 18-28, Approving the Execution of a  
Hydraulic Water Modeling Contract with Hazen and Sawyer in the Amount of $66,900; 
2); Resolution 18-31, Approving a Contract with Stantec to Develop a Financial 
Planning and Member Rate Analysis; 3) Ordinance 18-18, FY 18 BA #19, Transferring 
Funds From KLRW Reserves to Contracted Services and 4) Ordinance 18-22, FY 18 
BA# 22 for the Hazen & Sawyer Contract 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 

• KSO 5 – Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems. 
• KSO 8   –   Provide Sufficient Funding for Municipal Services. 

Executive Summary 

The City Council authorized two applications for a DWSRF grant/loan to build the KLRWS Water 
Treatment Plant to a 20 MGD capacity in two phases.   Under the current Phase 1A KLRWS has a 
contract with CDM to develop the Preliminary Engineering Report, design the high rate clarification 
system, 4 filters, and other process improvements and develop the GMP (guaranteed maximum price) 
for Phase 1.  Several items have come up during the report phase that were not scoped out in Phase 
1A which, should be included in the comprehensive report for both phases of work.  These costs, if 
approved, can be absorbed in the second design phase (Phase 1B) of the project. 

1. KLRWS Water Hydraulic Model, $66,900 – the City of Henderson has worked with Hazen 
and Sawyer for many years to develop a water distribution model that includes the KLRWS 
water treatment plant, transmission mains, booster pumps and elevated tanks.  Since they 
have already developed the model and are intimately familiar with our system it makes 
economic sense to have them run the analysis for new high service pumps at the WTP and 
booster pumps at Oxford 1 and 2 as it relates to the 20 MGD upgrade. (20MGD). This work 
will be paid for if approved out of the contingency fund for Phase 1 as shown in Ordinance 
18-22, FY 18 BA #22. 

2. Stantec Proposal to Develop a Financial Planning and Member Rate Analysis $27,950 –  
DWSRF Awarded the City of Henderson $15,000,000 ($3,000,000 in Grant and $12,000,000 
in Loan) and Warren County $5,000,000 ($3,000,000 in Grant and $2,000,000 in Loan) for a 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 Council Meeting: 14 May 18 Reg. Meeting



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 2 of 21 

Total of $20,000,000 to the KLRWS to complete the 20MGD expansion.  KLRWS has 3 
partners and Oxford did not secure any funding for the 20 MGD capacity upgrade as they had 
secured funding for their distribution system rehabilitation.  Historically the City of 
Henderson has secured funding for all projects at KLRWS and then rates were established to 
offset Debt repayment, which could have potentially impacted Henderson’s ability to borrow 
for other projects.  Since two of the partners did receive a component of a grant to the 20 
MGD expansion there needs to be equitable distribution of the debt for all partners.  Will this 
be done through water rates, annual debt off-set payment or some other financial vehicle?   
Stantec is a well-known and respected name in the Water utility business and has a strong 
financial arm that can present several solutions to resolve this problem and they will provide 
us the financial tool to permit us to use on future projects.  It is recommended that a Stand 
Alone Contract be awarded to Stantec in the amount of $27,950 to be paid out of contracted 
services.  A budget amendment is attached which allows the transfer of funds to contracted 
services; therefore, reducing the amount going to the reserve for FY 18.  This contract is not 
reimbursable by DWSRF under the 20 MGD Expansion project but, it is a vital and equitable 
component of managing the financial resources of KLRWS and its partners and will be paid 
out of the FY 18 budget as shown in Ordinance 18-18 FY 18 BA #19. 

The KLRWS Advisory Board has heard these concerns and has recommended tasks #1 and 2 be 
performed and the costs captured in the project in Phase 1or until such time as the project funds are 
combined into one.  In addition, the city has two proposals for some additional geophysical rock 
exploration as well as hazardous material survey; however, this is still under review and discussion 
with CDM Inc., our design build contractor. 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution  18-28  
2. Resolution 18-31
3. Ordinance 18-18  
4. Ordinance 18- 22
5. Hazen & Sawyer Water Model Proposal
6. Stantec Proposal 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 3 of 21 

RESOLUTION   18-28 
APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF A HYDRAULIC MODELING 

CONTRACT WITH HAZEN AND SAWYER IN THE AMOUNT OF $66,900 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 
2018 Strategic Planning Retreat, and 

WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this Resolution as follows:  
KSO 8: To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 
Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and KSO 5: To  Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental Compliant 
Infrastructure Systems, and

WHEREAS, the Kerr Lake Regional Water System intends to construct process improvements, 
rehabilitation and expansion of its drinking water treatment plant; and 

WHEREAS, the Kerr Lake Regional Water System is a partnership between the City of 
Henderson, the City of Oxford, and Warren County; and 

WHEREAS, the Kerr Lake Regional Water System has received an Interbasin transfer certificate 
in support of providing a reliable water supply to its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Kerr Lake Regional Water System has previously obtained an allocation of 
storage in Kerr Lake from the US Army Corps of Engineers; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has received a letter of Intent to Fund both phases of the 
WTP Improvements increasing the capacity to 20 MGD from NCDEQ’s DWSRF 
Division; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has a long standing relationship with Hazen and Sawyer who 
has already developed and calibrated a water distribution model and is intimately 
familiar with our system; it is in the City’s best interest to have Hazen and Sawyer 
evaluate the hydraulics of KLRW system for the upcoming 20 MGD improvements; and  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HENDERSON NC 
THAT: It awards a contract to Hazen and Sawyer in the amount of $66,000 to perform a 
hydraulic of the KLRW system and recommend improvements to bring the WTP to a 20 
MGD capacity. 

CAF 18-45 
Attachment #1 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 4 of 21 

The foregoing Resolution 18-28, upon motion of Council Member _____________and seconded 
by Council Member _______________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received 
the following votes and was ______________ on this the ___ day of ______________2018:  
YES:  NO:  ABSTAIN: ABSENT:  

____________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 

________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference Minute Book 44 p ***; CAF 18-45   



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 5 of 21 

RESOLUTION   18-31 

APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH STANTEC TO DEVELOP A FINANCIAL 
PLANNING AND MEMBER RATE ANALYSIS FOR THE 20 MGD PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 2018 
Strategic Planning Retreat, and 

WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this Resolution as follows:  KSO 8: To 
Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the 
Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities;   and KSO 5:  To  Provide 
Reliable, Dependable and Environmental Compliant Infrastructure Systems, and

WHEREAS, the Kerr Lake Regional Water System intends to construct process improvements, 
rehabilitation and expansion of its drinking water treatment plant; and 

WHEREAS, the Kerr Lake Regional Water System is a partnership between the City of Henderson, the 
City of Oxford, and Warren County; and 

WHEREAS, historically the City of Henderson has secured funding for all projects at KLRWS and then 
rates were established to offset Debt repayment; and

WHEREAS,  two of the partners did receive a component of a grant to the 20 MGD expansion and there 
needs to be equitable distribution of the debt for all partners; and  

WHEREAS,  Stantec is a well-known and respected name in the Water utility business and can provide 
the financial tools to permit us to use on future projects.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HENDERSON NC THAT it 
approves a Contract be awarded to Stantec in the amount of $27,950 to be paid out of contracted 
services to provide a Financial Planning and Member Rate Analysis to equitably distribute the 
debt to all partners for the 20 MGD project. 

The foregoing Resolution 18-31, upon motion of Council Member _____________and seconded by 
Council Member _______________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following 
votes and was ______________ on this the ___ day of ______________2018:  YES:  NO:  ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

____________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference Minute Book 44 p ***; CAF 18-45   

CAF 18-45 
Attachment #2 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 6 of 21 

O R D I N A N C E 18-18 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2017-2018 BUDGET 
TRANSFERRING FUNDS FROM REGIONAL WATER RESERVE 

THE CONTRACTED SERVICES  
 FY18 AMENDMENT #19 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council) on June 12, 2017, adopted its 
FY 17-18 Operating Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvement Projects Fund for active 
CIP projects; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 
operating and CIP projects fund from time-to-time, said amendment being incorporated 
into this Ordinance.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 
the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

Approved Current

Line Item Code 12-Jun-17 Budget Amendment Revised

-$                -$                -$                  -$                           

Total -$                -$                -$                  -$                           

-$                           

Approved Current

Line Item Code 12-Jun-17 Budget Amendment Revised

64-660-561078 1,478,880.00$  1,448,880.00$  (27,950.00)$       1,420,930.00$             

64-900-504500 120,000.00$    120,000.00$     27,950.00$        147,950.00$                

-$                -$                -$                  -$                           

Total 1,598,880.00$  1,568,880.00$  -$                  1,568,880.00$             

1,568,880.00$             

Variance -$                  

Notes:
Budget amendment to transfer funds into Regional Water Contracted Services: Routine budget to pay 

for Stantec to provide Financial Planning and Member Rate Analysis.

FY 17-18 Budget Amendment #19

Reference:
CAF# 18-45; ORDINANCE #18-18; BA#19                            

14 MAY 2018 COUNCIL MEETING

  REVENUES

Trans To: 78: Regional Reserve

Contracted Services: Routine

Budget Transfer For Stantec Financial Planning/Member Rate Analysis

FUND:  64:  REGIONAL WATER

  EXPENDITURES

Ordinance 18-18

CAF 18-45 
Attachment #3 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 7 of 21 

The foregoing Ordinance 18-18, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 14th day of May, 2018:  YES: **.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  
**.         

  ___________________________________ 
               Eddie Ellington, Mayor 

ATTEST:
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Reference:  Minute Book 46 p. ***; CAF 18-45 

Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
Joseph Fuqua, Finance Director 

Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
Frank Frazier, City Manager



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 8 of 21 

O R D I N A N C E 18-22 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2017-2018 BUDGET 
TRANSFERRING FUNDS FROM REGIONAL WATER RESERVE 

THE CONTRACTED SERVICES  
 FY18 AMENDMENT #22 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council) on June 12, 2017, adopted its 
FY 17-18 Operating Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvement Projects Fund for active 
CIP projects; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 
operating and CIP projects fund from time-to-time, said amendment being incorporated 
into this Ordinance.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 
the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

                             Ordinance 18-22
                               FY 17-18 Budget Amendment #22

                Transfer Of Funds From Contingency To Engineering

  REVENUES Approved Current

Line Item Code 12-Jun-17 Budget Amendment Revised

State Revolving Loan 46-944-458221 -$                19,863,000.00$ -$                  19,863,000.00$           

-$                -$                 -$                  -$                           

-$                -$                 -$                  -$                           

Total -$                19,863,000.00$ -$                  19,863,000.00$           

19,863,000.00$           

  EXPENDITURES Approved Current

Line Item Code 12-Jun-17 Budget Amendment Revised

Engineering 46-944-510301 -$                1,788,725.00$   66,900.00$        1,855,625.00$             

Legal/Admin 46-944-510200 -$                35,000.00$       -$                  35,000.00$                  

Construction 46-944-510400 -$                17,126,975.00$ -$                  17,126,975.00$           

Contingency 46-944-509900 -$                500,000.00$      (66,900.00)$       433,100.00$                

Closing Fee 46-944-513100 -$                397,300.00$      -$                  397,300.00$                

Loan Application 46-944-510300 -$                15,000.00$       -$                  15,000.00$                  

Total -$                19,863,000.00$ -$                  19,863,000.00$           

19,863,000.00$           

Variance -$                  

Reference: Notes:

CAF: 17-69A; Ord.: 17-38; BA #6; 9 Oct.. 2017                                  

Council Meeting

FUND:  46:  CIP REGIONAL WATER                                                   

PROJECT:  KLRW IMPROVEMENT - PHASE 1

This ordinance establishes the project budget for the execution of a design-build contract with CDM 

Constructors, Inc. for the KLRWS plant improvement to 20MGD.

CAF: 18-45; Ord.: 18-22; BA #22; 14 May 20178                                 

Council Meeting

This ordinance establishes the transfer of $66,900 from Contingency to Engineering for contractor 

Hazen & Sawyer to perform analysis on high service and booster pumps.

CAF 18-45 
Attachment #4 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 9 of 21 

The foregoing Ordinance 18-22, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 14th day of May, 2018:  YES: **.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  
**.          

___________________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Reference:  Minute Book 46 p. ***; CAF 18-45 

Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
Joseph Fuqua, Finance Director 

Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
Frank Frazier, City Manager



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 10 of 21 

CAF 18-45 
Attachment #5 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 11 of 21 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 12 of 21 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 13 of 21 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 14 of 21 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 15 of 21 

CAF 18-45 
Attachment #6 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 16 of 21 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 17 of 21 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 18 of 21 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 19 of 21 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 20 of 21 



CAF 18-45: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 21 of 21 



CAF 18-42: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 1 of 5 

______________________________________ 
1 May 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council 
FR: Frank Frazier, City Manager 
RE: CAF:  18- 42  

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-26, Accepting a Grant/Loan from 
DWSRF for the Kerr Lake Regional Water System Plant Improvement Project in a 
Total Amount of $15,000,000  

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 

• KSO 5 – Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems. 

• KSO 8   –   Provide Sufficient Funding for Municipal Services. 

Executive Summary 

The City Council authorized the application for a DWSRF grant/loan to progress the KLRWS 
Water Treatment Plant to a 20 MGD capacity.  The City received an “Intent to  
Fund” letter from DWSRF for the loan and grant amount totaling $15,000,000.  The Intent to 
Fund Loan amount was appended to the existing loan at 1.53% for 20 years.  We received notice 
on March 1, 2018, that our application was approved for a loan in the amount of $12,000,000 
with 1.53% interest and a grant in the amount of $3,000,000.   The closing costs for the grant are 
1.5% and 2.0% for the loan which is due when we receive a guaranteed maximum price from our 
Design Build Contractor.  

The KLRWS Advisory Board recommends that the DWSRF funds be accepted and staff from all 
the partners (Henderson, Oxford and Warren County) also recommend that the Henderson City 
Council authorize City of Henderson Mayor to accept the full amount including the loan and 
grant for the above mentioned project. 

If the general consensus is to move ahead, the City, pending final LGC authorization, will move 
ahead with this project.  

Attachments: 
1. Resolution  18-26  
2. NC DWSRF Letter of Intent to Fund

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 Council Meeting: 14 May 18 Reg. Meeting  



CAF 18-42: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 2 of 5 

RESOLUTION   18-26 
AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT/LOAN FROM DWSRF 

FOR THE KERR LAKE REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM (KLRWS) PLANT 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FOR A TOTAL OF $15,000,000 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 2018 
Strategic Planning Retreat, and 

WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this Resolution as follows: 
KSO 8: To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 

Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities;   and 
 KSO 5:  To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems, and

WHEREAS, the Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina Water 
Infrastructure Act of 2005 (see North Carolina General Statute Chapter 159G “Water 
Infrastructure”) (Acts) authorized the making of loans and grants to aid eligible units of 
government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water treatment works; and

WHEREAS, the KLRWS intends to construct process improvements, rehabilitation and expansion of 
its drinking water treatment plant; and 

WHEREAS, the KLRWS is a partnership between the City of Henderson, the City of Oxford, and 
Warren County (Partners) ; and 

WHEREAS, the KLRWS received an Interbasin transfer certificate in support of providing a reliable 
water supply to its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the KLRWS has previously obtained an allocation of storage in Kerr Lake from the 
United States Army Corps of Engineers; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson has received a letter of Intent to Fund and it is in the best interest 
of the City and its partners, the City of Oxford and County of Warren, to accept said loan 
offer.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HENDERSON NC 
THAT, pending Local Government Commission (LGC)  approval, it accepts the loan from 
the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) – Division of Water 
Infrastructure - Drinking Water State Revolving Funds (DWSRF) and grants will fund a 
project increasing the Water Treatment Plant’s capacity to 20 million gallons daily (MGD) 
and funding the  upgrade of unit processes, rehabilitation of ageing infrastructure and 
allowing the performing of  treatment improvements of its water treatment plant contingent 
upon NCDEQ’s approval. 

The City, pursuant to the Acts,  will arrange financing from the LGC and for any remaining costs 
associated the project, if approved for a State award.  

CAF 18-42 
Attachment #1 



CAF 18-42: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 3 of 5 

The KLRWS will provide continued efficient operation and maintenance of the current water 
treatment plant after completion of the new construction. 

Each Partner of the KLRWS will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project a 
schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate funds for proper 
operation, maintenance, and administration of the KLRWS and the repayment of all principal and 
interest on the debt. 

The City will ensure a provision is included in the loan agreement authorizing the North Carolina  
State Treasurer, upon failure of the City to make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from 
the State  government fund owing the City and use the funds for loan repayment.  

The KLRWS and each Partner have and intend to comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, 
rules, regulations, and ordinances pertaining to the Projects and the grants and loans. 

The City Mayor is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of the KLRWS the loan agreement with 
the State of North Carolina for a loan and/or grant, upon LGC approval, and to provide information 
required for the review of the KLRWS loan and grant requests. 

The foregoing Resolution 18-26, upon motion of Council Member _____________and seconded by 
Council Member _______________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the 
following votes and was ______________ on this the ___ day of ______________2018:  YES:  NO:  
ABSTAIN: ABSENT:  

____________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference Minute Book 4* p **; CAF 18-42   



CAF 18-42: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 4 of 5 

CAF 18-42 
Attachment #2 



CAF 18-42: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting:  
Page 5 of 5 



CAF 18-48: 14 May 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 

________________________________________ 
2 May 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council
FR: Frank Frazier, City Manager 
RE: CAF:  18-48 

Consideration of Approval of: 1) Resolution 18-34, Awarding Change Order #1 for the 
Newton Dairy Road, Birch & Bobbitt Project; and 2) Approval of Budget Ordinance 18-20, 
FY 18 BA #20, Amending the Budget for the CDBG Infrastructure Project # 14-I-2658 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Executive Summary 

The CDBG Project is under contract and sanitary sewer construction has begun in the Birch Bobbitt area. 
Due to utility conflicts with the proposed sanitary sewer alignment, the sanitary sewer main had to be 
relocated to the center of both Birch and Bobbitt Streets creating a significant cost over-run in the asphalt 
repairs line item.  The density of the homes in this area and the number of road cuts required to provide 
sewer services to all the homes has made it impractical to patch the trenches along these roads.  
Therefore, it is most practical to do a complete overlay of the street rather than try to patch it.  The 
recommended change order is as follows: 

• Executed contract cost (Patching of cuts) $60,000 
• Proposed Change Order #1 which includes a complete overlay of 

Asphalt at 20’-0 wide and 2 inches thick  $87,500 
Difference $27,500 

Staff and the Engineer recommend the approval of Change Order #1 to HG Reynolds in the amount of 
$27,500 to cover the additional cost of removing and replacing the existing asphalt on these streets in lieu 
of patching.  The current project contingency is $48,750 and the proposed Change Order #1 will require 
the transfer of $27,500 into the construction line item leaving $ 21,250 in contingency, for the remainder 
of the project.  This is an allowable cost of the CDBG funds. 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 18-34 
2. Ordinance 18-20 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 Council Meeting:  14 May 18 Regular Meeting 



CAF 18-48: 14 May 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

RESOLUTION 18-34 

APPROVING CHANGE ORDER #1 TO H G REYNOLDS FOR THE 
NEWTON DAIRY ROAD, BIRCH & BOBBITT CDBG 

INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT # 14-I-2658 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2018 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

WHEREAS,  this item addresses KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally 
Compliant Infrastructure Systems; and 

WHEREAS, the total project cost is $1,950,630, and a total of construction cost of $1,673,830 
(including a 3% construction contingency) included in the budget; and 

WHEREAS, the relocation of sanitary sewer to the center of the streets due to utility conflicts 
has forced the contractor to cut the asphalt into small blocks with trench cuts for the main 
sewer line and the sewer laterals to each home.  Trench repairs this extensive will create a 
poor ride and for a small change order the road’s surface course can be replaced in its 
entirety.  HG Reynolds has prepared a change order of $27,500 to remove and replace all 
the asphalt in the project corridor in the Birch Bobbitt subdivision. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT it 
HEREBY approves Change Order #1 at a cost of $27,500 to H. G. Reynolds Company 
for the Removal and Replacement of the road surfaces and approving $27,500 of 
contingency to be transferred to the construction line item. 

The foregoing Resolution 18-34,  introduced by Council Member------------------_and seconded 
by Council Member ______ on this the   th day of                2018, and having been submitted to a 
roll call vote, was ---------  by the following votes: YES:  NO: .  ABSTAIN         .  ABSENT:   

__________________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor

ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 
____________________________________   
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference:  Minute Book 46, p ***; CAF 18-48 

CAF 18-48 
Attachment #1 



CAF 18-48: 14 May 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

ORDINANCE 18-20 

 FY 17-18 BUDGET AMENDMENT #20 AMENDING THE BUDGET 
FOR THE CDBG INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT 14-I-2658 

(NEWTON DAIRY ROAD/BIRCH AND BOBBITT STREET SEWER 
EXTENSION PROJECT) 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on June 12, 2017, adopted its FY 17-
18 Operating Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Grants Projects Fund for active grant projects. 
said fund referred to as 55: Grants Projects Fund; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 
operating and grants projects fund from time-to-time, said amendment being incorporated 
into this Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 
the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

Approved Current

Code 12-Jun-17 Budget Amendment Revised

44-858-458146 -$                1,532,400.00$  -$                  1,532,400.00$             

44-858-461079 -$                418,230.00$     26,000.00$        444,230.00$                

-$                -$                -$                  -$                           

Total -$                1,532,400.00$  26,000.00$        1,976,630.00$             

1,558,400.00$             

Approved Current

Code 12-Jun-17 Budget Amendment Revised

44-858-510100 -$                144,800.00$     -$                  144,800.00$                

44-858-510200 -$                87,000.00$      -$                  87,000.00$                  

44-858-510400 -$                1,625,080.00$  53,500.00$        1,678,580.00$             

44-858-510600 -$                6,000.00$        -$                  6,000.00$                   

44-858-510800 -$                39,000.00$      -$                  39,000.00$                  

44-858-999010 -$                48,750.00$      (27,500.00)$       21,250.00$                  

Total -$                1,950,630.00$  26,000.00$        1,976,630.00$             

1,976,630.00$             

Variance -$                  

CAF 17-71; Ord 17-28 BA #2 24 July 15 SCM total project budget will be $1,532,400 to be used for sewer improvements and connections.

CAF 15-98: ORD 15-41; BA #13 26 Oct 15 Council 

Meeting

This amendment establishes the project budget for a grant awarded to the City of Henderson. The 

total project budget will be $1,532,400 to be used for sewer improvements and connections

CAF 18-48; ORD 18-21 14 May Council Meeting Amendment #20 involves CAF 18-48 ORD 18-20 which moves $27,000 out of Contingency into 

Construction

FUND:  44:  CIP SEWER                                                   

PROJECT:  858:  Newton Dairy/Birch/Bobbitt

Ordinance 18-20
FY 17-18 Budget Amendment #20

CAF 18-47 Change Order #1

  REVENUES

Design

Grant Administration

Construction

Line Item

DWI/CDBG - Sewer

44 CIP Sewer: Trans. From: 79: Rate Stab.

Line Item

Right of Way Easement

  EXPENDITURES

Construction Administration

Contingency

CAF 18-48 
Attachment #2 



CAF 18-48: 14 May 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

The foregoing Ordinance 18-20, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the    day of                2018-:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .      

___________________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 

Reference:  Minute Book 45, p.**; CAF 17-71 

Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
Joseph Fuqua, Finance Director 

Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
Frank Frazier, City Manager



CAF 18-47: 14 May 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 

________________________________________ 
2 May 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council
FR: Frank Frazier, City Manager 
RE: CAF:  18-47 

Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 18-33, Approve Change Order #2 to replace 
Water Services to H G Reynolds for the Newton Dairy Road, Birch & Bobbitt Project; and 
2) Ordinance 18-21, FY 18 BA #21, Amending the Budget for the CDBG Infrastructure 
Project 14-I-2658 (Newton Dairy Road/Birch and Bobbitt Street Sewer Extension Project) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Executive Summary 
The CDBG Project is under contract and sanitary sewer construction has begun in the Birch Bobbitt area.  
The Contractor HG Reynolds has been installing the gravity sewer and sewer services down the center of 
the streets.  During the course of construction it has become apparent that the existing galvanized water 
services are old and in poor condition; and need to be replaced.   The water services on Bobbitt Street 
need to be tapped to the existing larger water main and run to the existing meter box.  The old 2-inch 
galvanized water line would be abandoned after switching over the services.  The existing water 
customers on Birch Street are tied to the larger water main but have galvanized water services that 
required repair clamps to keep them in service. 

Staff requested HG Reynolds to provide a unit price change order to replace the existing services from the 
main to the meter box on both streets as well as a cost to make taps on the newer and larger watermain on 
Bobbitt Street.  The change order will cost $26,000 to get all these water services replaced prior to 
repairing/overlaying the street.  This cost is not a permissible expense to the project but can be funded 
from the City’s Rate Stabilization Funds.  It is recommended by Staff that these funds be taken from the 
Rate Stabilization Funds to fix all the water services in this project corridor, leaving a balance of 
$2,172,525. 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 18-33 
2. Ordinance 18-21 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 Council Meeting:  14 May 18 Regular Meeting 



CAF 18-47: 14 May 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

RESOLUTION 18-33 
AWARDING A CHANGE ORDER #2 TO H G REYNOLDS FOR WATER 

SERVICES THE NEWTON DAIRY ROAD, BIRCH & BOBBITT PROJECT  

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2017 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

WHEREAS,  this item addresses KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally 
Compliant Infrastructure Systems; and 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council approved Resolution 15-48 accepting the loan in the 
amount of $1,532,000 for the design and construction of sewer collection system for the 
Birch and Bobbitt street area and the elimination of the Chicken Farm Pump Station via 
the Newton Dairy sewer outfall; and 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council approved Resolution 17-54 to transfer funds from the 
Sewer Fund – Rate Stabilization Fund to the project budget bringing the total project 
budget amount to $1,950,630 for the design and construction of sewer collection system 
for the Birch and Bobbitt street area and the elimination of the Chicken Farm Pump 
Station via the Newton Dairy sewer outfall; and 

WHEREAS, the total project cost is $1,950,630, and a total of construction cost of $1,673,830 
(including a 3% construction contingency) included in the budget; and 

WHEREAS, the water services on Birch and Bobbitt are in poor condition and need to be 
replaced and HG Reynolds has prepared a unit price change order of $26,000 to replace 
all the water services in the project corridor. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT it 
HEREBY  approves  Change Order #2 at a cost of $26,000  to H. G. Reynolds Company 
for Water Services and to transfer $26,000 from Rate Stabilization Funds to the Newton 
Dairy Road, Birch, Bobbitt CDBG project. 

The foregoing Resolution 18-33, introduced by Council Member------------------_and seconded 
by Council Member ______ on this the   th day of                2018, and having been submitted to a 
roll call vote, was ---------  by the following votes: YES:  NO: .  ABSTAIN         .  ABSENT:   

__________________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor

ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 
____________________________________   
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference:  Minute Book 46, p ***; CAF 18-47 

CAF 18-47 
Attachment #1 



CAF 18-47: 14 May 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

ORDINANCE 18-21 

 FY 17-18 BUDGET AMENDMENT #21 AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR 
THE CDBG INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT 14-I-2658 (NEWTON DAIRY 
ROAD/BIRCH AND BOBBITT STREET SEWER EXTENSION PROJECT) 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on June 12, 2017, adopted its FY 17-
18 Operating Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Grants Projects Fund for active grant projects. 
said fund referred to as 55: Grants Projects Fund; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 
operating and grants projects fund from time-to-time, said amendment being incorporated 
into this Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 
the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

Approved Current

Code 12-Jun-17 Budget Amendment Revised

-$                -$                -$                  -$                           

Total -$                -$                -$                  -$                           

-$                           

Approved Current

Code 12-Jun-17 Budget Amendment Revised

79-641-535750 2,616,755.00$  2,198,525.00$  (26,000.00)$       2,172,525.00$             

79-641-561044 -$                418,230.00$     26,000.00$        444,230.00$                

-$                -$                -$                  -$                           

Total 2,616,755.00$  2,616,755.00$  -$                  2,616,755.00$             

2,616,755.00$             

Variance -$                  

Amendment # 20 involves CAF 18-47: ORD 18-20, which moves $27,000 out of Contingency into 

Construction

CAF 18-47; ORD.: 18-21; 14 May 2018 Council 

Meeting

This amendment involves CAF 18-48: ORD 18-21 which transfers $26,000  from  Rate Stabilizaiton 

into this CIP project also to be added into Construction.

 Ordinance 18-21 
 FY 17-18 Budget Amendment #21 

 CAF 18-48 Change Order #2 

FUND:  79:  RATE STABILIZATION

total project budget will be $1,532,400 to be used for sewer improvements and connections.

Rate Stabilization 

Rate Stabilization: Trans. To: 44: CIP Sewer

Line Item

  REVENUES

CAF: 17-71; Ord.: 17-28; BA #2; 24 July 2017 This amendment revises the original budget to adjust the total and various expenditure lines to 

Council Meeting

  EXPENDITURES

Reference: Notes:

CAF: 15-98; Ord.: 15-41; BA #13; 26 Oct. 2015 This amendment establishes the project budget for a grant awarded to the City of Henderson. The

Line Item

Special Called Meeting

CAF: 18-48; ORD.: 18-20;14 May Council Meeting

effectively complete the project.

CAF 18-47 
Attachment #2 



CAF 18-47: 14 May 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

The foregoing Ordinance 18-21, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the -----th day of --------------- 2018  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   
.      

___________________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 

Reference:  Minute Book 46, p.**; CAF 18-47 

Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
Joseph Fuqua, Finance Director 

Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
Frank Frazier, City Manager



CAF 18-46: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 5 

_______________________________________ 
May 4, 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council 
FR: Frank Frazier, City Manager 
RE: CAF: 18-46

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-32, Authorizing the Demolition of 314 
Hillside Alley 

Ladies and Gentlemen:  

Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 

• KSO 4: Improve Condition of the Housing Stock – To improve the condition of and 
expansion of the Housing Stock. 

o AP 4-1: Code Enforcement – To actively enforce City Codes that result in the 
rehabilitation and/or demolition of substandard, dilapidated or deteriorated housing 
in order to remove blight. 

Executive Summary 

314 Hillside Alley is a jointly owned property that is considered dilapidated due to fire damage 
and the cost to repair it would exceed the assessed value and undoubtedly not be recoverable.  
On December 15, 2017, the dwelling was totally damage by fire. On March 8, 2018, the City and 
County obtained ownership through tax foreclosure.   

Being that this property is owned jointly by the City and County, the normal demolition 
ordinance is not required, but the City is seeking Vance County’s approval.  The dwelling has 
been inspected by City staff.  

A letter has been sent to the Vance County Manager requesting their approval for the demolition 
of this property. As always in our City/County owned properties, any cost and/or eventual sale of 
the property would be shared accordingly. 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 18-32 

2. Henderson City Code 21A-1 

3. Photos 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 
Council Meeting: 14 May 18 Regular Meeting 



CAF 18-46: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 

RESOLUTION 18-32 
AUTHORIZING THE DEMOLITON  

OF 314 HILLSIDE ALLEY 

WHEREAS,  the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
2018, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; 
and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 4:  AP 4-1: Improve Condition of the Housing 
Stock – To improve the condition of and expansion of the Housing Stock. 

o AP 4-1: Code Enforcement – To actively enforce City Codes that result in 
the rehabilitation and/or demolition of substandard, dilapidated or deteriorated 
housing in order to remove blight. 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) and County of Vance (County) jointly own the 
property identified below; 

o 314 Hillside Alley (Parcel 0091 05011); and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City and County to demolish the structure located at 
property mentioned above; and 

WHEREAS, demolition will be subject to approval by the County; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of the demolition would be shared between the City and County. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT 
IT DOES HEREBY AUTHORIZE the demolition of the structure mentioned above 
contingent on approval by the County. 

The foregoing Resolution 18-32, introduced by Council Member ____________ and seconded 
by Council Member __________ on this the 14th day of May 2018, and having been submitted to 
a roll call vote, was approved by the following votes: YES:  NO:.  ABSTAIN:. ABSENT:. 

___________________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 

________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference:  Minute Book 46, p **   

CAF 18-46 
Attachment #1 



CAF 18-46: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 

Abandoned Structures Owned by City of Henderson and Vance County 
Abandoned structure statutes are outlined in chapter 21A in the City of Henderson, Code of Ordinances: 

Chapter 21A - ABANDONED STRUCTURES

Sec. 21A-1. - Legislative findings, intent and purpose; "abandoned building or 

structure" defined. 

The provisions of this chapter shall be enforceable not only within the city limits of the City of 

Henderson, but also within the extra-territorial jurisdiction area, established and defined by law, 

surrounding the city. Notwithstanding the above authority, the powers set forth herein shall not be 

enforced by the city in the ETJ unless funding is provided for specific enforcement within the ETJ via 

grants, funding from Vance County or from the city council or other sources. On the other hand, said 

enforcement shall be allowed when the property is divided by the city limit line, and/or if the city 

manager specifically finds either that a particular property in proximity to the city limits is having an 

adverse impact on the health, safety and welfare of a Henderson citizen or property or that the same 

is necessary in the best interest of the City of Henderson as it relates to the overall health, safety 

and welfare of the citizens of Henderson. It is hereby found that there exist within the city and the 

extra-territorial jurisdiction area abandoned structures which the city council finds to be hazardous to 

the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the city due to the attraction of insects or rodents, 

conditions creating a fire hazard, dangerous conditions constituting a threat to children, or frequent 

use by vagrants as living quarters in the absence of sanitary facilities. Therefore, pursuant to the 

authority granted by General Statutes of North Carolina, section 160A-441, it is the intent and 

purpose of this chapter to provide for the repair, closing or demolition of any such abandoned 

structures in accordance with the same or similar provisions and procedures as are set forth by law 

for the repair, closing or demolition of dwellings unfit for human habitation. 

For purposes of this chapter an abandoned building or structure shall include any building or 

structure that has remained without legal occupants for a period of at least one hundred twenty (120) 

days and cannot be legally occupied at the end of such period because of its failure to comply at 

said time with provisions of one (1) or more applicable state or local codes. 

(9-8-86, § 2; Ord. of 4-24-06(2), §§ 3, 4; Ord. No. 13-42, § 1, 10-28-13)
 1

• Structures noted in this document fall within the definition of “Abandoned Structure” per the code.  

All have been vacant for a period of at least 120 days and cannot be legally occupied at the end of such 

period because of its failure to comply at said time with provisions of one (1) or more applicable state or 

local codes. 

• Structures have no power meter, and no water service 

1
 Henderson, NC Code of Ordinances 

CAF 18-46 
Attachment #2 



CAF 18-46: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 

• Structures in this document further qualify as “Abandoned Structure” by meeting the qualifications of 
a structure constituting a hazard to the health, safety or welfare of the city’s citizens as a result of: 

• Section 21A-4a. – Standards for enforcement 

(1) The attraction of insects or rodents; 

(2) Conditions creating a fire hazard; 

(3) Dangerous conditions constituting a threat to children; or 

(4) Frequent use by vagrants as living quarters in the absence of sanitary facilities. 

(9-8-86, § 2; Ord. of 9-13-04(5), § 1) 

• Also, most structures will meet many of the conditions in Section 21A-4b 

(1) Holes or cracks in the structure's floors, walls, ceilings or roof which might attract or admit 

rodents and insects, or become breeding places for rodents and insects; 

(2) The collection of garbage or rubbish in or near the structure which might attract rodents and 

insects, or become breeding places for rodents and insects; 

(3) Violations of the State Building Code, the State Electrical Code, the Fire Prevention Code or 

other applicable codes, which violations constitute a fire hazard in such structure; 

(4) The collection of garbage, rubbish or combustible material which constitutes a fire hazard in 

such structure; 

(5) The use of such structure or nearby grounds or facilities by children as a play area; 

(6) Violations of the State Building Code which might result in danger to children using the 

structure or nearby grounds or facilities as a play area; and 

(7) Repeated use of such structure by transients and vagrants, in the absence of sanitary 

facilities, for living, sleeping, cooking or eating. 

(9-8-86, § 2; Ord. of 9-13-04(5), § 1) 



CAF 18-46: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 

314 Hillside Alley 

CAF 18-46 
Attachment #3 



CAF 18-49: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 

________________________________________ 
9 May 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council 
FR: Frank Frazier., City Manager 
RE: CAF 18-49 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 18-35, Authorizing the Application for a 
State Farm Community Grant by the Henderson Fire Department in the Amount of 
$25,000 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 

KSO 8: Provide Sufficient Funding for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to 
Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities. 

Executive Summary 

State Farm believes in operating globally and giving back locally to build safer, stronger and 
better educated communities where they work and live and are proud to support the needs of 
their communities by providing grants to local organizations through the Community Grant 
Program.  

On May 7th the Fire Department received notice via email of the opportunity to apply for the 
State Farm Community Grant in the amount of $25,000. There is no city match required and if 
awarded, this grant will enable the Henderson Fire Department to purchase the following items. 

• 10 year smoke detectors and carbon monoxide detectors to be installed in homes that are 
without and /or non-working detectors. 

• Stovetop firestops to go in kitchens for unattended cooking fires. In conjunction with our 
home inspection program we have a great opportunity to lower the safety risk for fire 
hazards resulting in property loss as well as personnel injury and or death.  

• An inflatable safety house to teach kids about home fire safety. This would allow us to 
teach kids fire safety in a fun friendly manner. 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 
Council Meeting: 14 May 18 Regular Meeting 



CAF 18-49: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

This grant would also allow us to grow our home inspection program. The 2018 grant cycle 
begins June 6, 2018 and the application deadline is June 15, 2018 or when 2,000 submissions are 
reached.  It is our hopes to be one of the first applications submitted; therefore, increasing our 
chances of being awarded the grant. Notification of Grant award would be given by September 
25, 2018. 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution 18-35 
2. Email regarding Grant 



CAF 18-49: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

R E S O L U T I O N 18-35 

AUTHORIZING THE APPLICATION OF A STATE FARM 
COMMUNITY GRANT BY THE HENDERSON FIRE DEPARTMENT 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $ 25,000 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2018, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and 
Goals;  and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows:  KSO 8: 
To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to 
Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities;  and 

WHEREAS, State Farm is proud to support the needs of their community by providing grants to 
local organizations through the community Grant Program in the amount of $25,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Henderson Fire Department is requesting $25,000 in a State Farm Community 
Grant to provide for the purchase of  Smoke Alarms, Carbon Monoxide detectors, 
Stovetop Firestops, and an Inflatable Safety House; and 

WHEREAS, there is no required match by the City of Henderson.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT 
IT DOES HEREBY AUTHORIZE the City Manager to file the grant application for the 
State Farm Community Grant as outlined above. 

The foregoing Resolution 18-35 , introduced by Council Member ____________ and seconded 
by Council Member _____________ on this the 14th day of May 2018, and having been 
submitted to a roll call vote, was ************* by the following votes: YES:. NO:  ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN.  

_____________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 

________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference:  Minute Book 44, p ***; CAF 18-49 

CAF 18-49 
Attachment #1 



CAF 18-49: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

From: Stephanie Rodriguez [mailto:stephanie.rodriguez.ext6@statefarm.com]  
Sent: Monday, May 07, 2018 11:45 AM 
Cc: Kim Conyers 
Subject: Bring $25,000 to your community – 2018 State Farm Neighborhood Assist®  

Have you ever wanted to help your community with a problem but didn’t know where to start? Maybe 
it’s a run-down park or to help the impoverished in your community. Now, YOU have the power to fix it.  

As a company, State Farm® continues its effort through Neighborhood of Good® to inspire and empower 
people to turn caring into doing. As part of this platform, State Farm Neighborhood Assist is back for its 
seventh year in 2018. 

State Farm Neighborhood Assist, a crowd-sourced philanthropic initiative, lets communities determine 
where grant funding is awarded. Anyone 18 years of age and older in the U.S. can participate. 

The application is short and simple, and you can learn more by visiting www.neighborhoodassist.com. 
The program officially launches on June 6. You, or someone you know, could be the catalyst for positive 
change to your community cause! 

Your application will be judged based on your answers to the following three questions:    

•       How much does your “Cause” focus on an unmet need in this community? 
•       Why do you feel the $25,000 would address the unmet need? 
•       How much of a lasting impact on this community would the proposal have? 

The submission phase is open from June 6-June 15 or when 2,000 submissions are reached, whichever 
comes first. You can submit one cause in one of the three categories of safety, community development 
or education. All you have to do is submit the cause; you don’t have to “run the program.”  

After the submission stage ends, the State Farm Review Committee will read and narrow down all the 
submissions to the top 200 finalists.  

Once the top 200 causes are identified, they will appear on www.neighborhoodassist.com to be voted 
on by you and your community. The voting stage will last for 10 days from August 15-August 24 and 
each person gets up to 10 votes per day, every day during that period.  

The top 40 causes with the most votes will each receive a $25,000 grant from State Farm!   

Winners will be announced on September 25 at www.neighborhoodassist.com. 

Please share this amazing opportunity with your colleagues, friends and family and help spread the word 
via social media. Together, you and State Farm can help create safer, stronger, and better educated 
communities!  

CAF 18-49 
Attachment #2 



CAF 18-38: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting: 9 April 2018 Work Session 
Page 1 of 4 

________________________________________ 
9 April 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council 
FR:  Frank Frazier, City Manager 
RE: CAF: 18-38:  

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 18-16, Establishing a No Parking Zone on Zeb 
Robinson Road  

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 

• Core Value 2: Citizen/Customer Friendly: We value our citizens and customers and will work with 
them in a courteous, professional manner.   We value their participation and input and owe them an 
answer to their questions in a timely manner. 

Executive Summary 

The City of Henderson Police Department has observed littering, loitering and other illegal activity in the 
area of Zeb Robinson Road. This area has large amounts of trash, which appears to be related to the club 
I-85 Bar and Grill located at 118 Zeb Robinson Road. When the parking lot is full, the shoulder of the 
road is used for parking.  The area is approximately half way from Charles Rollins Road to Market Street. 
As a result this causes illegal activity to take place in that area along with littering. 

The City of Henderson Police Department is requesting that “No Parking” signage be placed on both 
sides of Zeb Robinson Road, starting 700 feet south of the intersection of Charles Rollins Road and Zeb 
Robinson Road, ending at the intersection of Zeb Robinson Road and Market Street.  

The Police Chief has informed other businesses in the area of this request. 

Attachments: 

1. Ordinance 18-16 
2. Map 
3. Picture 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 
Council Meeting: 14 May 2018 Regular Meeting   



CAF 18-38: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting: 9 April 2018 Work Session 
Page 2 of 4 

ORDINANCE 18-16 

ESTABLISHING A NO PARKING ZONE ON ZEB ROBINSON ROAD  

The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 

Section 1.  That the following be added to Schedule of Streets set forth in Section 7-79.1 relating to 
prohibited parking at all times: 

Zeb Robinson Road on both sides starting 700 feet south of  the intersection of Charles Rollins 
Road and Zeb Robinson Road, ending at the intersection of Zeb Robinson Road and Market 
Street. 

The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage. 

The foregoing Ordinance 18-16, upon motion of Council Member ____________ and seconded by 
Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the 
following votes and was ************** on this the **th  day of _______, 2018:     YES:        . NO:      .   
ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

____________________________________ 
Eddie Ellington, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 

Approved to Legal Form: 

________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 

Reference:  Minute Book 44, p **; CAF 18-38 

CAF 18-38 
Attachment #1 



CAF 18-38: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting: 9 April 2018 Work Session 
Page 3 of 4 

CAF 18-38 
Attachment #2 



CAF 18-38: 14 May 2018 Council Meeting: 9 April 2018 Work Session 
Page 4 of 4 

CAF 18-38 
Attachment #3 



CAF 18-39:  14 May 2018 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 1 

________________________________________ 
13 April, 2018 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Eddie Ellington and Members of City Council 
FR: Frank Frazier, City Manager 
RE: CAF 18-39 

Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the 
Month of March 2018  

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Executive Summary 

The Vance County Tax office submitted the following tax releases and refunds to the Finance 
Department for the month of March 2018. These records are found to be in order and are being 
recommended for approval. 

March 2018 Tax Releases & Refunds

Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property Releases

Macon, Mattie Lost To Foreclosure 2010-2017 428.08$                    

Watkins, C.F. Real Property Billed In Error 2011-2017 499.30$                    

Mayfield, Gertrude Lost To Foreclosure 2012-2017 1,424.03$                 

Unknown Lost To Foreclosure 2012-2017 56.52$                      

Anoviv Realty Corrected Value 2016-2017 7,238.38$                 

Edgett, Harold Personal Property Billed In Error 2016-2017 6.16$                        

Pulley, Robert Corrected Value 2016-2017 378.08$                    

Cash, Corbett Personal Property Billed In Error 2017 4.44$                        

Dubinski, Mark Personal Property Billed In Error 2017 1,519.34$                 

Edwards, Vincent Personal Property Billed In Error 2017 128.83$                    

Person, George Personal Property Billed In Error 2017 55.53$                      

Vaughn, Frances Remove Solid Waste 2017 99.94$                      

West, Gary Personal Property Billed In Error 2017 3.08$                        

Tippett, Philip Personal Property Billed In Error 2018 80.37$                      

-$                         

Real & Personal Property Releases - Total 11,922.05$               

Real & Personal Property Refunds

-$                         

Real & Personal Property Refunds - Total -$                          

Audit Discoveries

Kindred Nursing Center 2018 1,411.43$                 

North Central Medical 2018 1,010.66$                 

Audit Discoveries - Total 2,422.09$                 

Total Refunds & Releases 14,344.14$               

City Council Action Form
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252-430-5701 
Council Meeting: 14 May 18  Regular Meeting 



2018 Meetings and Events Calendar 

All Regularly Scheduled Council Meetings are held on the 2nd Monday of the Month  

(All dates are subject to change)

May 21
st

Mon 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board Meeting City Council Chambers

May 25
th

Fri 10:00 AM H-V 911 Advisory Board Meeting 911 Operations 

May 28
th

Mon City Hall Closed Memorial Day City Hall Closed 

Jun 4
th

Mon 9:30 AM KLRW Advisory Board Meeting 
City Hall Large 

Conference Room 

Jun 5
th

Tue 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Adjustment Board Meeting City Council Chambers

Jun 11
th
 Mon 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Jun 14
th

Thur 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission Meeting  
Aycock Recreation 

Center 

Jun 18
th

Mon 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board Meeting City Council Chambers

July 4
th

Wed City Hall Closed Independence Day City Hall Closed 

July 9
th

Mon 5:00 PM 
Perry Memorial Library Advisory 

 Board Meeting  
Perry Memorial Library 

July 9
th

Mon 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

July 10
th

Tue 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Adjustment Board Meeting City Council Chambers

July 12
th

Thur 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission Meeting  
Aycock Recreation 

Center 

July 16
th

Mon 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board Meeting City Council Chambers































# of Water Main Repairs Bulky Waste 49 tons

# of New Water Services Recycle Waste 15 tons

# of Service Repairs Garbage

# of Meters Switched to Radio Read Waste Industries: 454 tons

# of Active Accounts (Current Month) Brush Collected 130 tons

# of Total Radio Read Meters: Leaves Collected 6 tons

# of Sewer Repairs: Street Sweeper 150.24 miles

# of Sewer Blockages: Street Sweeper- Waste 34 tons
# of New Sewer Services: Litter Collection 0 bags

# of LF of Sewer Mains Cleaned

# of Pot Holes Repaired: 56

Asphalt 1 tons

Concrete 0 yards

Sidewalk Repairs 3 sq. yds.

# of Signs Replaced 41

# of Catch Basins Cleaned 1

# of Storms Drains Replaced 0

Total Water Treatment 187.97  (MG*) Average Monthly Flow 2.404 MGD

Average Daily Treated 6.266 (MGD**) Maximum Daily Flow 4.108 MGD

Maximum Daily Treated 8.312 (MGD) Monthly Precipitation 5.89 inches

Minimum Daily Treated 4.864 (MGD) Maximum Rainfall 1.85 inches

Septic Tank Hauler 36,950 gallons

Current Kerr Lake Level 303.51 Septic Tank Hauler Revenue 2,020$       Monthly

(Guide Curve) 302.00 Samples Analyzed 284 Monthly

*- Million Gallons

** Millon Gallons per day

Normal Pool - 300.00' Full Pool - 320.00'

Remarks

CITY OF HENDERSON PUBLIC WORKS, KLRW AND HWRF MONTHLY 

REPORT for April 2018

Remarks:

Sanitation- Streets

Wastewater Treatment Plant (HWRF)Water Treatment Plant (KLRW)

Remarks:

Remarks:

12

1

27
2

14,474

0

5

8,790

3,996

2



1 

RECREATION/PARKS 

APRIL 2018 RECREATION PROGRAM SUMMARY 

RECREATION PROGRAM DIVISION 

YOUTH ATHLETICS 

SPORT GAMES PRACTICES SPECTATORS PARTICIPANT 
HOURS 

COACHES 
MEETINGS 

Baseball/Softball 47 135 4,175 7,202.5 4

RECREATION PROGRAMS 

Golden Age Club – conducted four weekly meetings that included a trip to Imperial 
Centre, lunch at the Smokehouse in Rocky Mount and a Bingo day. There was a total 
monthly attendance of 39 members.  

Visually Impaired Program (VIP) - this program works with visually impaired citizens. 
Volunteers help provide recreational activities that includes a support group meeting. 
There was a total monthly attendance of 20 visual impaired citizens for the month.  

Special Olympics –Vance County Special Olympic Volleyball held 4 practices for the 
month with a total monthly attendance of 53 athletes. 

Rec Players - Interviews for Director were held on April 10.  Rec Players Advisory 
Committee members recommended hiring Stephanie Asabi Howard to direct the second 
showing and “Clybourne Park”  will be performed August 9-12 at McGregor Hall. 

Senior Games – The Henderson-Vance Recreation Parks and Department hosted 
badminton, croquet and table tennis at the Aycock Recreation Center on April 12 for the 
Region K Senior Games. Crystal Allen assisted with Track and Field Events held on 
April 17th in Warren County. This event allows seniors ages 50 and older from Vance, 
Warren, Granville, Franklin, and Person counties to participate in tournament style 
games. 

Special Events 

The “Week of the Young Child” was honored April 16-20.  During this week, the 
Henderson-Vance Recreation and Parks Department staff teamed up in groups of two and 
provided various games and activities at the different elementary schools in the area.  
Crystal and Tara provided activities for two Pre-K classes at Aycock Elementary, a 
second grade class at Clarke Elementary and a fifth grade class at Dabney Elementary. 



2 

Candace Williams and Steve Osborne led activities with 5th graders at LB Yancey 
Elementary School. Shantel Hargrove and Keisha Alston led games with kindergarteners 
at E.M. Rollins.  

Crystal Allen attended the Recreation Advisory Meeting that was held April 5 and a Rec 
Players on April 24 at City Hall.  

AYCOCK RECREATION CENTER 

The Henderson-Vance Recreation and Parks Department is helping the City, County, and 
Vance County Schools with an employee wellness program by providing free 
memberships to all City, County, and Vance County School employees. There were a 
total of 27 City Employees, 9 County Employees and 5 Vance County School 
Employees.

There was a total of 1,786 patron check-ins at Aycock Recreation Center for the month of 
April. This excludes the numbers for rentals, meetings, classes, aquatic events, and youth 
athletics.

Slide N Glide is a fitness class designed for participants to learn the newest slides while 
working up a sweat. Slide N Glide had 19 participants for the month of April. 

Beginning Yoga is a fitness class designed for participants to learn the basic techniques 
of Yoga and to inspire physical, mental, and spiritual peace from within.  Yoga had 5 
participants for the month of April. 

Zumba is a fitness class that involves dance and aerobic movements performed to 
energetic music.   Zumba had 23 participants for the month of April.  

F.I.T. (Fun Interval Training) is a fitness class where you vary your speeds and intensity 
throughout a short run.  F.I.T. had 12 participants for the month of April. 

There was one multi-purpose room rental with 6 hours of usage and a total of 80 
participants; one lobby rental with 1 hour of usage and a total of 40 participants for the 
month of April.

Vance County held their employee recognition on Friday, April 13 at the Aycock 
Recreation Center.

JCPC held their monthly meeting on April 19 in the lobby.

Early Voting began on Thursday, April 19 in the Multipurpose Room.  



3 

Vance-Granville Community College utilized the gym on Wednesday, April 25 for 
basketball tryouts.  

Youth services utilized the multi-purpose room on Wednesdays for D.R.E.AM. dance 
practices.  

DREAM will host their annual Fashion Show on Saturday, April 28th in the gym.

YOUTH SERVICES 

Community Service/Restitution

There were no new admissions the month.  One youth was terminated.  There are 
currently seven youth working on their Community Service hours.   

Teen Court 

There were no new admissions this month.  There were no terminations during the 
month.  There are currently eight youth enrolled.   

There were no referrals for the month so Teen Court was not held during the month of 
April.   

NC Teen Court Association hosted its annual Mock Trial competition April 13-15 in 
Concord, NC at the Great Wolf Lodge.  Vance County brought home several awards.  
Two attorneys won the Best Attorney award for their respective trials with one as defense 
and one was prosecution.  Our bailiff was the Best Overall Bailiff for his courtroom.  Our 
clerk was the Best Overall Clerk for her courtroom. 

Project Youth Outreach 

Program is up and running for this school year with programs hosted at EO Young, New 
Hope, Aycock, Carver, Eaton-Johnson, and Henderson Middle School. 

D.R.E.A.M. 

The Third Annual Fashion Show was held on April 28. 

Community Outreach Efforts

Youth Services hosted several sessions of the Shop Talk series.  Sessions were held at the 
following locations:  (1) ExQuizid Cuts (2) Eastside Barbershop (3) Touch of Class (4) 
Heavenly Reign and (5) Renaissance.  At each of these events, citizens of both the City 
and County voiced their concerns and/or ideas to help improve our community.  

Teen Council held its first meeting on April 16. 



4 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

Shantel Hargrove, Candace Williams and Greg Kelly attended the Recreation 
Commission meeting on April 5. 

Greg Kelly attended the Boys & Girls Club board meeting on April 10. 

Candace Williams and Shantel Hargrove attended the JCPC Meeting on April 19 where 
funding presentations were presented. 

Candace Williams participated in Zeb Vance’s Career Day on April 23. 

Greg Kelly attended a Safe Kids meeting on April 24. 

Candace Williams participated in Zeb Vance’s report conferences on April 30. 

AQUATICS 

Water Aerobics Class was held 25 times with a total of 198 participants. 

Practice was scheduled for 1 swim team 3 times with 66 participants and 6 hours of 
usage.   

AM open swim was held 21 times with 67 participants and 42 hours of usage. 

Pinkston Elementary SAW came 5 times with 36 participants and 5 hours of use. 

Group swim lessons were held 48 times with 103 participants and 18 hours of use. 

Swim groups were scheduled 3 times with 15 participants and 13 hours of use for 1 
group. 

Rentals were booked 1 time with 27 participants and 2 hours of use. 


